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Mr. Yu Tsz Ngo (resigned on 24 November 2023)
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2804A, 28/F,
Wu Chung House,

213 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111 Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

AUDITORS
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 01703

WEBSITE

https://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/welifetech/
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For the year ended 31 March

HE3AMHLEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000 % Change
FET FET BEH DL
Revenue & 421,309 304,356 38.4
Revenue less cost of inventories Wam B EBFEEFEER K
consumed 319,102 227,025 40.6
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable KABHEAE AEEER
to the owners of the Company wAl (E518) 28,845 (6,940) (515.6)
Earnings/(loss) per share SREF, (B8)
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EH AR #E GBL) 2.5 (0.6) (516.7)
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS FEMFELE=X

As at/For the year ended

31 March

3A31H EBEZBHLLEE

2024 2023

20244 20234

Gross profit margin (%) EFZE (%) 75.7 74.6
Net profit/(loss) margin (%) “hF (18) F(%) 6.8 (2.3)
Return on total assets (%) EEELRE(%) 15.7 N/A 58
Return on equity (%) e ENEIEESCTY) 70.6 N/A 8
Current ratio (times) RENELE (2) 0.8 0.7
Quick ratio (times) REELEK (2) 0.8 0.7
Gearing ratio (%) (Note) BEESELE%) (D) 35.4 315.0
Interest coverage (times) MEBELLE (B) 22.5 N/A 38

Note: Gearing ratio equals to interest-bearing debts divided by total equity
attributable to owners of the Company as at the year end.

Mz BEARLERENGEEBRUERAABES
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR A B o T

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group is a full-service restaurant group in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") offering Cantonese
dining and banquet services including wedding banquet services.
During the fiscal year ending on 31 March 2024, Hong Kong’s
economy experienced significant improvement. This progress was
primarily attributed to the rapid rebound of both the Hong Kong
and PRC economies from the COVID-19 Pandemic (“COVID-19"),
resulting in heightened consumption by local residents of Hong
Kong and PRC tourists. The upsurge was further supported by
an increase in the utilization of transportation, storage, postal,
and courier services. As the recovery from COVID-19 persisted,
individuals allocated more time to travel and transportation
activities, contributing to this expansion. Following the recovery
from COVID-19 and the implementation of COVID-19 recovery
measures by the Hong Kong Government since mid-September
2023, our restaurant business gradually regained momentum.
For the fiscal year ending on 31 March 2023, turnover surged by
approximately HK$116.9 million, marking a 38.4% increase from
around HK$304.4 million in the previous year to approximately
HK$421.3 million.

The following table sets out the movement of the number of
restaurants we operated during the financial years indicated:

EBOERRE

AEBREARFPEAREMNE ((FE) —EB2E
RFXEEER REEXENRBLREZRD
BIEEEIRTS RN B E 20243831 H LA EE -
EARBEHBENS LEERFEHFRAREERK
R A& RAECOVID-19% 15 (TCOVID-19 1) RV IRER
K5 HEEBAMERKTEEZHHE DR
BB BEMRRERBEEENEMNE—F S
BT IR RS FEERCOVID- 190918 BT 4 » AT
DEELZFERRITHMREZE BT E—EE-
B2023F98 Ra sk BESTEBBNE/COVID-19
EHERRRIBER RN BIEERZHRES
J1oEE2023E3831H LM RERE » & ¥ AU A
116,98 & AT BRAI —FEMNH304.48 B TEM
384%E4X421 3EB BT

TREHIHEFARPAITHRFEECENEEHREES:

Year ended 31 March

HE3A3MBILLEE
2024 2023
202445 20234
Number of restaurants at the beginning of the year E#IHIEIZ S E 9 9
Number of newly acquired restaurant during the year R BZNHE = 1
Number of closed restaurants during the year (note) ERREREENEE (i:E) 3) (1)
Number of restaurants at the end of the year FRVEEEE 6 9

In light of the ongoing recovery of the Hong Kong and PRC
economies from the impacts of COVID-19, we foresee a positive
trajectory in customer spending at Chinese restaurants. The
Group plans to conduct a comprehensive evaluation of its current
core business activities across different geographical regions to
formulate a sustainable business plan and strategy for future
expansion. Our focus will involve exploring potential business
opportunities and investments across various industries and
locations to strengthen the Group’s long-term growth prospects.
Additionally, we will explore diverse business models, including
partnerships with third-party restaurant operators, to enhance
the Group’s competitiveness in the fullservice restaurant banquet
market in both the Hong Kong and PRC regions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by 38.4% from approximately
HK$304.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$421.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2024. Such increase in revenue was mainly due to rapid rebound
of both the Hong Kong and PRC economies from the COVID-19,
resulting in higher consumption by local residents of Hong Kong
and PRC tourists, which led to an increase in the number of
customers and banquet services provided by the Group.

Cost of food and beverages

The Group's cost of food and beverages increased by approximately
32.2%, from approximately HK$77.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2023 to approximately HK$102.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2024. The increase was in line with the increase
in revenue during the year ended 31 March 2024. The cost of food
and beverages as a percentage of revenue decreased from 25.4%
for the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately 24.3% for
the year ended 31 March 2024 as the food and beverages costs
increased in accordance with the inflation during the year.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately 40.6% from
approximately HK$227.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2023
to approximately HK$319.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2024. The increase was in line with the increase in revenue during
the year ended 31 March 2024. The gross profit margin increased
from 74.6% for the year ended 31 March 2023 to 75.7% for the
year ended 31 March 2024 mainly due to the increase in food and
beverage costs as a result of inflation.

Other gains and losses, net

The Group's net other gains and losses increased by approximately
225.0% from approximately HK$2.4 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023 to HK$7.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2024. The increase was mainly due to the gain on
lease remeasurement of approximately HK$8.7 million and the
decrease of the impairment loss on goodwill. On 29 July 2022,
the Group completed the acquisition of subsidiaries, a goodwill
of approximately HK$14,561,000 was recognised. In fact, during
the year ended 31 March 2023, an entry of impairment loss of
HK$14,561,000 was made. As a result, there is no impairment loss
on goodwill for the year ended 31 March 2024.
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AEFKZAEE2023F3831H IEFEERL304.4
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR A B o T

Staff costs

The Group's staff costs increased by approximately 29.3%, from
approximately HK$113.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2023 to approximately HK$146.6 million for the year ended
31 March 2024. Such increase was mainly due to increase in
headcount and employing more part-time employee for restaurants
operations and banquet services as a result of the relaxation of the
Measures. The staff costs as a percentage of revenue decreased
from approximately 37.3% for the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately 34.8% for the year ended 31 March 2024 mainly
due to increase in revenue.

Property rentals and related expenses

The Group's property rentals and related expenses increased by
approximately 8.2%, from approximately HK$20.7 million for the
year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately HK$22.4 million for
the year ended 31 March 2024 mainly attributable to the increase
in demand for property rental upon the recovery of COVID-19
during the year ended 31 March 2024 when compared to last year.

Depreciation

The Group’s depreciation of property, plant and equipment
decreased to approximately HK$7.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2024 as compared to HK$8.9 million for the year ended
31 March 2023 mainly due to the decrease in the total number
of restaurants in operation during the year ended 31 March 2024
when compared to last year.

The Group's depreciation of right-of-use assets decreased to
approximately HK$45.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2024
from HK$47.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 mainly
due to the decrease in the total number of restaurants in operation
during the year ended 31 March 2023 when compared to last year.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased to HK$6.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2024 as compared to HK$7.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2023 due to (a) the decrease in lease liabilities during
the year; and (b) the decrease in the total number of restaurants in
operation during the year ended 31 March 2024 when compared
to last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit/(loss) for the year

The profit for the year increased by approximately HK$35.9 million,
from loss of HK$6.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 to
a profit for the year of approximately HK$29.0 million for the year
ended 31 March 2024 mainly due to the combined effect of the
factors discussed above.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's objectives in managing capital are to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes bank borrowings, net of bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Group, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure of the Group periodically
and may take different measures, including the payment of
dividends, the issue of new shares and raising of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

The Group’s liquidity requirements primarily relate to the working
capital needs (mainly for procurement of food and beverages
from suppliers, staff costs, property rents and various operating
expenses), providing catering and banquet services and working
capital needs for loss making period, and the principal source of
funds is mainly from working capital generated internally from the
Group's operation, bank borrowings and the net proceeds received
from the Listing.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
(including time deposits with maturity over three months) were
approximately HK$76.3 million (2023: HK$95.8 million). As at
31 March 2024, the Group’s total current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$104.0 million (2023: HK$113.5
million) and approximately HK$127.1 million (2023: HK$170.1
million), while the current ratio of the Group was approximately
0.8 times (2023: approximately 0.7 times). During the year,
approximately HK$2.2 million were incurred for acquiring property,
plant and equipment for renovating existing restaurants (2023:
HK$3.6 million) and approximately HK$22.9 million were used for
repayment of bank borrowings (2023: HK$7.1 million). Excluding
the current lease liabilities, the net current assets was HK$24.5
million (2023: HK$13.1 million) and the current ratio as at
31 March 2024 was 1.3 times (2023: 1.1 times).

PR A e o T

FEREF (518
FRRAAEE2023F3831HIEFENEEL6.9
BEATIEMNA35.98 BB T2 EE2024543831H
IEFEEMNENEHNA29.08 8B JThEERR Lt
RENIREFEMR

RBEE  MBERKRERRE

FEREEEANEREREAREEERE-

FEBNEARBREFEER EFSRERITHER
R RTEFRIRERAEREA ABGER (8
BEETREKRER))

EXEEHERTERERNRBRAERDNAEIE
> SRR AR B FITHR D REE AR I EL
RERH-

FEENRHETRERIESINEEETRE F2
mEHEERERRERM BIRA YEEER
BHEEMS - REBRAREGRFUKRBIEAN
EEETENR TRESTRBRTEREFERER
NEELENEBES  IRTERR LHRIBIFAE
TRIRFEE

R2024F3831H > AEBNRS RIS EEY (8
FIHHHBE-EENTEHER 8A7635E B
70 (20234 : 95.8E BB 7T) o 1R202443831H >
AEENTHEERRDBRBREENAI04.088
Bt (2023%F 1 113 5FHE BT RN127 1888t
(20235 1 170. 1B & B7T) > MAEERENLE
#750.81% (20234 : 9A0.713) - ER- 42288
Bt (2023F (3.6 8B ARNBEYE BEK
B UBIRAEBIERLN22. 988 BT (20234F ¢
7IEEART ARNEBRETER B AHEES
E% 2024 FE383 1 HY R EEFEA24588
Bt (2023F 13 1B &B7T) > MAEEER1.315
(20234 : 1.118) °

Annual Report 2024 FE%§ 9



Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR A B o T

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$14.4 million (2023: HK$37.4 million). The
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and repayable
on demand which carried floating interest rate of 1-month HIBOR
plus 1% per annum.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
35.4% (2023: 315.0%), which is calculated based on the
interest-bearing debts divided by total equity attributable to
owners of the Company as at 31 March 2024 and multiplied by
100%. The decrease in gearing ratio was due to the profit for the
year which increased the total equity as at 31 March 2024. The
Directors, taking into account the nature and scale of operations,
capital structure of the Group and the necessity for maintaining
sufficient financial resources to support the operations, considered
that the gearing ratio as at 31 March 2024 was reasonable.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the year under review was primarily
related to expenditures on additions and renovation of property,
plant and equipment for the Group’s new restaurants and
maintenance of existing restaurants.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and the Group is not exposed to any significant foreign
exchange exposure.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 8 July 2022, the Company has entered into a Business
Development Consultancy Agreement (the “Consultancy
Agreement”) with Jasons Holdings (Shenzhen) Company Limited
(RRBEZR CFHI) BEAS) (“Jasons”), pursuant to which
Jasons will be remunerated in the manner to be agreed between
the Company and Jasons.

On 14 July 2023, in relation to the remuneration for the
Consultancy Agreement, the Company has entered into a
remuneration agreement with Jasons (the “Remuneration
Agreement”), pursuant to which the consultancy fee (i.e.
HK$9,400,000) (the “Consultancy Fee”) to Jasons shall be
settled by way of allotment and issue of 45,000,000 shares
("Consideration Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.227 for each
Consideration Share. The application to issue the Consideration
Shares had subsequently be withdrawn by the Company on
17 November 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The lawyers of Jasons has issued a petition to wind up the
Company, the winding up hearing of which shall take place on
16 April 2025. The Company is currently seeking for legal advice.

As per the Company's lawyer understanding, given the factual
dispute as to the authenticity of the Remuneration Agreement and
the services provided by Jasons, it is unlikely for Jasons to be able
to wind up the Company without first clarifying the factual issues.
Therefore, the management of the Company concluded that the
Consultancy Fee should not be recognised in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had approximately 261
employees (2023: 224 employees).

The Group offers competitive wages and other benefits to our
restaurant employees, and makes salary adjustments in response
to the local labour market conditions. Our staff costs primarily
consisted of salaries, allowances, and other benefits, contributions
to retirement benefits scheme and Directors’ emoluments.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to the
resolution passed on 25 January 2019 to give the eligible persons
(as mentioned in the following paragraph) an opportunity to
have a personal stake in our Company and help motivate them to
optimise their future performance and efficiency to our Group and/
or to reward them for their past contributions, to attract and retain
or otherwise maintain ongoing relationships with such eligible
persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of our
Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to enable our
Group to attract and retain individuals with experience and ability
and/or to reward them for their past contributions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR A B o T

Eligible participants of the share option scheme include (a) any
executive director of, manager of, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of our Group, any full-time or part-time employee, or a
person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-time
for any member of our Group; (b) a director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member
of our Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member
of our Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any member
of our Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of our Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of
our Group; (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above; and (h) any person involved in the
business affairs of the Company whom our Board determines to be
appropriate to participate in the share option scheme.

No share options has been granted since the effective date of the
share option scheme and there are no outstanding share options as
at 31 March 2024.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024, the deposit placed for a life insurance policy
amounting to approximately HK$16.4 million (2023: HK$16.2
million) was pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not hold any significant
investments.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the year under review, the Group had no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

12 Welife Technology Limited #7145 ERHS BRAE]

BRESENGERALEEQFTEREMKRER
BNEARTES KERETHR EE -EEH
BUBMUNEMEE - EA2RRBES NEH
EAEERAABEAREEE2BEERITFHA
T O FEBEAREATNEFTHHEES (B1F
BUFATES) ;(OFEBEAREATNEREN
BEERR (ATEBREANEARNE RERFBH
BE e AERERAMEATNER BB XHWN
BEBH MNEE A8/ REAHARER HAEE
E{ERMEARRMRE A REIEMZIER
ERERZE B EXNEMBRBRIALHNEEL ;(9)
EX@QFEQRFIMERDALHBHEA , RhESEE
ERBE2HEBRESI B2 EARTEZHNER
Afe

BEREST R AN A RESER DERERI2024
I[N AEERITERERE

rEENEESH

R2024%F3831H  RBASRERELN164E8EETT
(2023%F 1 16.2E & BT B FHIFLUIERAEEN
IRITER -

BAKE

R2024F3831H  AERETEFEEREARKE

MBAR -BMEATRAGEATNEARR
BREE

CREFERN AEERENBAR BMEQATDNNEE
NEEAWENHE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPOSED ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 9 January 2023, the Company entered into a conditional
subscription agreement (the “CB Agreement”) with Longling
Capital Ltd (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue to the Subscriber convertible bonds
(the “Convertible Bonds”) in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$44,000,000. Based on the initial conversion price of the
Convertible Bonds of HK$0.80 per conversion Share, a total of
55,000,000 conversion Shares will be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the Convertible
Bonds in full, representing (i) approximately 4.78% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this report, and (i)
approximately 4.56% of the total number of Shares in issue as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of the 55,000,000 conversion
Shares upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds.

The gross proceeds and net proceeds (after deducting related
expenses) from the issue of the Convertible Bonds are estimated to
be approximately HK$44 million and HK$43.8 million, respectively.
The Company intends to apply the net proceeds to the restaurant
business development and general working capital of the Group.

On 21 April 2023, the Company and the Subscriber entered into a
supplemental agreement to the CB Agreement, pursuant to which
the long stop date of the CB Agreement has been extended to
31 July 2023 (or such other date as may be agreed between the
Company and the Subscriber) in writing (the “Long Stop Date”).

The Board further announced on 18 July 2023 that as it is expected
that the conditions precedent under the CB Agreement will not be
fulfilled by the Long Stop Date, the Subscriber and the Company
have mutually agreed that the CB Agreement will lapse and be of
no further effect after the Long Stop Date. Hence, the subscription
of the Convertible Bonds will not proceed. The Board is of the
view that the termination of the CB Agreement will not have
any material adverse effect on the financial position and business
operations of the Group. For further details of the proposed issue
of the Convertible Bonds, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 10 January 2023, 31 January 2023, 21 April
2023 and 18 July 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR A B o T

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANCY
AGREEMENT AND REMUNERATION
AGREEMENT

On 24 June 2022, the Company and Jasons Holdings (Shenzhen)
Company Limited* (KRRBIZR CFYI) BEFEAE) (“Jasons
Holdings”) entered into a strategic cooperation framework
agreement (the “Strategic Cooperation Framework
Agreement”) for a term of five years from 24 June 2022 to
23 June 2027, with a view to jointly exploring different modes of
business cooperation.

On 8 July 2022, in furtherance to the Strategic Cooperation
Framework Agreement, the Company and Jasons Holdings
entered into a business development consultancy agreement (the
“Business Development Consultancy Agreement”).

For further details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 24 June 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Disposal of Eternal Grand Group

On 16 September 2024, Eternal Grand Developments Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Eternal
Grand Group”), subsidiaries of the Group, were disposed to an
independent third party at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$8.

Disposal of Global Gourmet Group

On 28 August 2024, Global Gourmet Catering Services
Management Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Global Gourmet Group”), subsidiaries of the Group, were
disposed to an independent third party at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$8.

Litigations

On 17 May 2024, Mr. Tam Kar Wai and Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong
("Former Directors”) have resigned as an Executive Director and
Non-executive Director respectively. For details, please refer to Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Upon the resignation of the former directors, the management of
the Company is unable to obtain the books and records of certain
subsidiaries and the Company. The management noted several
transactions from the events mentioned below.

The Company received a petition dated 27 October 2023 (the
“Petition”) from Mr. Wang Lin under the Companies (Winding
Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32, Laws
of Hong Kong) (“CWUMPO"), filed in the High Court of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “High Court”)
under Companies Winding-up Proceedings No. 478 of 2023. The
petition claimed that the company may be wound up by the High
Court on the grounds that it is unable to pay its debts.

The Petition was filed against the Company for allegedly failing to
repay its overdue bond under a bond certificate purportedly issued
by the company in the principal amount of HK$5,150,000. This
amount was allegedly due for payment on 17 August 2023 and
owed by the company to Mr. Wang Lin.

In April 2024, the Company received a legal letter from Mr. Law
Yuen Him, claiming that the company failed to repay its overdue
bond under a bond certificate issued by the company in the
principal amount of HK$5,205,000 and filed to Court as a
supporting creditor of the case. This amount was allegedly due
for payment on 30 November 2023 and owed by the company to
Mr. Law Yuen Him.

In June 2024, the Company received a legal letter from Mrs. Zhao
Li, claiming that the company failed to repay its overdue bond
under a bond certificate issued by the company in the principal
amount of HK$2,360,000 and filed to Court as a supporting
creditor of the case. This amount was allegedly due for payment on
27 August 2023 and owed by the company to Mrs. Zhao Li.

In June 2024, the Company received a legal letter from Jan
Financial Press Limited and Ogier and filed to Court as supporting
creditors of the case, claiming that the company failed to settle
their professional fee billed of HK$280,000 and USD 4,142
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR A B o T

A settlement has been reached between the company, the
petitioner and supporting creditors regarding the Petition, totaling
approximately HK$13,804,000 (the “Settlement”), which
accounted as litigation loss for the year ended 31 March 2024.
Following the Settlement, a consent summons for the dismissal of
the Petition was executed and filed with the High Court of Hong
Kong on 10 July 2024. The High Court of Hong Kong ordered the
Petition to be dismissed on 22 July 2024.

The settlement aims to dismiss the winding-up petition, and
management is uncertain about the existence of the mentioned
bonds. The management has doubts regarding the existence
of the aforementioned transactions, as there is no evidence
demonstrating that the Company has engaged in such transactions
and is seeking legal advice. For more details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 8 August 2024.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no significant events took
place after the end of the period

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of at least 25% of the issued
Shares from the Listing Date to the date of this report.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting underwriting
fees and the listing expenses to be borne by the Group) (the “Net
Proceeds”) was approximately HK$92,734,000. Up to 31 March
2024, the Company has utilised approximately HK$87.7 million
of the Net Proceeds for the purposes as set out in the Prospectus,
representing approximately 94.6% of the Net Proceeds.

16 welife Technology Limited #7145 ERHS BRAE]

ARNBHEEFARIZFEEAT 2B ZAMNE > 42
BB8497513,804,00078 7¢ ([F1fE)) » sz RENEE2024
F3F31HIEEEEATRRBLTER - MR % > HIEH
E2ENEEREER2024E7TE10HEET RNEBASSE
ERRR cBAS S ARN2024F7822H T2 K E

0 2=
E@R°

MESERCEEZF MEEBARE LB
ELFE -BERY LM SNEFEFARRE B
BERBEAARTE2EAZRIRS  AAFESXK
FRER -BHEZHIB F2RAAT BHAS2024
F8HSHMI NS

FREXIEEEN  AEBRBRBEBRELEETARE
IHo

REATRGRE
RIEAASAMIENENREESFMN - BLH
HEEZEARESHE ARG EBEFEETRMR
D25% M TR A RIFKE ©

FRiSR ISR EEAE

LA RIEFE (KRNGEHE AR AERK
e LM (TERGFRIEFEE)) 49492,734,0008
TCo B E2024F3831H AR B EMIBREZTEH
FREN A P15 FUIE 3 884987,700,00078 7t » 15 FT 1S =X
TEF8E494.6% ©



Revised Revised

allocation allocation
of unused of unused Amount
Allocation of Net Proceeds Net Proceeds utilitized as at Estimated timeline
Net Proceeds according to on3March  on 18 October 31 March Unused Net ~ for utilization of the
Use of Net Proceeds FEREEERAR the Prospectus 2021 2022 2024 Proceeds  unused Net Proceeds
2153830 2022105188
F8R *8R 7
RERRER FERESE  FRHETE 204538310 BB RBRAMGHERE
FIRRERENARER WEEITRE  WEEIAE BRLE  MERERE HBRRR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAx THx TEx TEx TEx
Opening restaurants (Note) BB (1) 76.1% 70,557 22,655 5,000 - 5000 30 June 2025
2025565308
Renovation of existing restaurants BHREER 14.1% 13,063 - - - -
Promoting brands EERE 5% 4,633 1,843 = = =
Additional working capital, strategic ~ ESNEEES RERER
investment and other general Ht-REEER
corporate purposes 4.8% 4,481 30,000 17,655 (17,655) -
Total @t 100.0% 92,734 54,498 22,655 (17,655) 5,000

Note: The Board proposed to allocate approximately HK$5 million to open
new restaurants catering different other cuisines with the objective
of accommodating the changes of the catering and dining industry
which, in turn, would allow the Company to capture new customers.

The unused Net Proceeds are placed into authorised financial
institutions and/or licenced banks in Hong Kong. As at the date
of this report, there was no change of the business plan from that
disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 January
2019.

DIVIDENDS

Having assessed the cash flows and working capital required
in view of the current challenging business environment and
low-season in the first-half of the financial year of the Group, the
Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

Mzt : EFTEZEMOSABBTRAREETREMI
IROREE > UERERENEE EMEELAE
BESAIRS I E P o

RBAMEREFHEEFATBITSRBER,
WFHRIRIT - N A|RE BH BARF BEIR20195F
1AEMNBERERFMINEEMRL  ZH RS
o

1350

RIEEMEFRERERAERTBEE L¥FEX
SERTEREERERFEEEESR BEETL
BEMEE2024F383 1A LM BEE IR KRS
(2023F 1 &) o




Report of the Directors
HEERT

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal businesses of its subsidiaries are operating Chinese
restaurants in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The discussion and analysis of the Group’s business, financial
results and future prospects is set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.

There are certain principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group.

Risk relating to commercial real estate rental market

All of the restaurants of the Group are operated on leased
properties. If the Group is not able to enter into new lease
agreements or renew existing leases on commercially acceptable
terms, the Group's profitability, market share and growth may be
adversely affected.

Risk relating to increase in procurement costs for food and
beverages

The profitability of the Group depends significantly on its ability to
anticipate and react to changes in procurement costs of food and
beverages. The availability and prices of food supplies can fluctuate
and be volatile and are subject to factors beyond our control.

Reputation Risks

The Group operates the business under four brand names, namely,
“Palace (J2F) “, “Royal Courtyard (J238) ", “Sea Moon Cuisine
(EBEgEE)". If the Group fails to maintain and protect its
intellectual property, or if any third party misappropriates, dilutes or
infringes the Group's intellectual property, the value of the Group’s
brands may be harmed, which may prevent the Group’s brand from
achieving and maintaining market acceptance.

Even if the use of identical or similar trademarks, brands, and
logos by an infringing restaurant do not confuse customers, the
distinctive nature of the Group’s brand image could be blurred.
Any failure to protect or safeguard the intellectual property rights
of the Group could materially affect its business, financial condition
and results of operations.
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Compliance Risks

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates, the Group is required to obtain
or renew the licenses and permits for operating its restaurant
business, including general restaurant licence, liquor licence, water
pollution control licence and other approval or permits, including
endorsement to serve certain foods. Going forward, if the Group
fails to obtain or renew all the necessary licenses or permits
for its operation in a timely manner, it may be subject to fines,
suspension of operation for a while and/or cease operation in the
worst scenario, which could materially and adversely affect the
profitability of the Group.

The restaurant licensing compliance committee has been set up
to oversee the Group’s licensing compliance matters and the
implementation of the relevant policies. The committee will also
report to the Board at least four times a year.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied with
the relevant laws and regulations that may cause a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group in the event
of a material breach or non-compliance. During the year under
review, there was no material breach or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
(“ESG") POLICIES AND PERFORMANCES

The Group is committed to ensure that all business activities are
economically, socially and environmentally sustainable. It has
identified various ESG areas and has taken measures to control
the environmental and social impacts during its operations.
Through an effective control of our operations, compliance with
ESG requirements can be further assured. Please refer to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 42 to 83
of this annual report for details of our environmental policies and
performance.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 are set
forth in the consolidated financial statements on page 92 of this
annual report.

The dividend policy is stated in the section headed “Dividend
Policy” on page 37 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2024.
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Report of the Directors
HEERT

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the five years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements or
the Prospectus, is set out on page 188 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2024 was
1,150,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the Reporting Year are set out in note 27 of the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities. Intending holders
and investors of the Company's shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to
the taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for,
purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in the shares. It is
emphasised that none of the Company or its Directors or officers
will accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities of,
holders of shares in the Company resulting from their subscription
for, purchase, holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Reporting Year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out on note
36 to the consolidated financial statements and page 184 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the Company's reserves available for
distribution was approximately HK$82,284,000 calculated in
accordance with the Articles and the Companies Act, Cap.22 of
the Cayman lIslands, including share premium and other reserves
less accumulated loss. As at 31 March 2023, the Company had no
reserve available for distribution.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the Reporting Year, the Group made total charitable
contributions amounting to approximately HK$1,160,000 (2023:
HK$468,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The customers of the Group mainly consist of walk-in customers
of the general public. As such, the Directors consider that it is not
practicable to identify the five largest customers of the Group, and
the Group did not rely on any single customer during the Reporting
Year.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the total purchases from
our Group's five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 46.4% (2023: 46.4%) and our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 12.2% (2023: 12.2%) of our Group's
total purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates or any
shareholders (who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of our Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
any of the Group's top five suppliers during the year under review.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and
provides a competitive remuneration package and continuous
trainings to retain and motivate the employees.
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The Group also understands that it is important to maintain a
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to sustain
its operation. The Group strives to provide one-stop wedding
banquet services and diversified services and menu offerings to the
customers.

During the Reporting Year, there was no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers and/or
customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Reporting Year and as at
the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tam Kar Wai (resigned on 17 May 2024)

Mr. Cheng Man Cheong (resigned on 11 August 2023)

Mr. Tan Jian (appointed on 14 August 2023 and
retired from office on 25 October 2023)

Mr. Yeung Ka Ho (appointed on 22 May 2024 and
resigned on 29 November 2024)

Mr. Chu Pui Him (appointed on 29 November 2024)

Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk (appointed on 29 November 2024)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong (Chairman) (resigned on 17 May 2024)
Mr. Fok Siu Keung (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tat Keung (retired from office on 25 October 2023)

Mr. Wong Wai Ming (resigned on 14 August 2023)

Mr. Leung Chun Kin (appointed on 14 August 2023 and
retired from office on 25 October 2023)

Mr. Wang Xianglong (appointed on 14 August 2023 and
retired from office on 25 October 2023)

Mr. Tang Tsz Tung (resigned on 25 October 2023)

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (appointed on 22 May 2024 and
resigned on 29 November 2024)

Mr. Wong Che Sang (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation.

According to Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles, Mr. Chu Pui
Him, Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk, Mr. Fok Siu Keung, Mr. Char Shik
Ngor Stephen, and Mr. Wong Che Sang will retire as Directors
by rotation, and being offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the Senior
Management are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 84 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save for the connected transactions disclosed on pages 175 to
176 and related party transactions disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report, no Director
or connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the
Reporting Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts
with the Group’s senior management in full-time employment,
no management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Group were entered into or existed during the Reporting
Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the contracts disclosed under the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its holding company
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the Reporting Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors, among others, shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or about the execution of their duty in their
offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance
coverage for the Directors against liabilities to third parties that
may be incurred in the course of performing their duties as at the
date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

none of the Directors and chief executives or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO), which were (a)
required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO;
(c) required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”).

At no time during the period was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or the chief executives or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2024, so far as is known to any director or chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the Company,
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Name of shareholder

Capacity/nature of interest

EEREETHRASRKAFHEMAE
BEE AR ~ MR RIESF PRI

2 ik

BEEERIZTHAESARETZENHEARE
AEHHAEEEE (EERBFREERA) BIMRM7
RN HEFTEA(RFEE S KRG FRAIEXV
WBETRBDMIRERNEERBDREBHERS
PRAEMRAE (TE3ZFR) BIEREmm SR A 5 (b)sC ik
RAERBRBEFRIAERGIEI2FBFENET
AR EAERINA ;(ORB(EHETAESFE
TEFRZRESTR) (MREFR) BNEERAT
Fe Bk 3P Z AR IR T B A ©

REAREAES XASREEANBEASHES
BAERZH AEEFNETETHASNELBEN
RKm+N\BRFREAIBRBEARBDHEMEMEANER
BB RMHEESMED -

FERRIRBQERG R AAR AR Y
FExm Re ik

R2024F3831 A B\EARBEERESTHEETEA
B AT EEHAARBEEZITHRAERIN R
KRBRMD K ABRAR D P B R BN AR ERIRE
FRAAEEAFE336RBEEN S MANER IR
BU

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of
shares (Note 1)

RS B% wEnE R EE (MizE1) MAFRE AL
Brilliant Global Assets Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 340,000,000 (L) 29.57%
EmEA A (sF2)
Happy Century Global Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3) 189,500,000 (L) 16.48%
EmEA A (:E3)
Notes: MIsE -
1. The letter "L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares 1.  F& ML) RRZALRERE AR AEEE RS

and underlying shares of the Company or the relevant associated
corporation.
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2. These shares were held by Brilliant Global Assets Limited. The
entire issued shares of Brilliant Global Assets Limited are owned by
Mr. Chen Sugiang.

3. These shares were held by Happy Century Global Limited. The entire
issued shares of Happy Century Global Limited are owned by Mr. Lo
Chor Cheong Colin.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, no person had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to the
resolution passed on 25 January 2019 to give the eligible persons
(as mentioned in the following paragraph) an opportunity to
have a personal stake in our Company and help motivate them to
optimise their future performance and efficiency to our Group and/
or to reward them for their past contributions, to attract and retain
or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such eligible
persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of our
Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to enable our
Group to attract and retain individuals with experience and ability
and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

Eligible participants of the share option scheme include (a) any
executive director of, manager of, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of our Group, any full-time or part-time employee, or a
person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part- time
for any member of our Group; (b) a director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member
of our Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member
of our Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any member
of our Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of our Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of
our Group; (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above; and (h) any person involved in the
business affairs of the Company whom the Board determines to be
appropriate to participate in the share option scheme.
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The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Schemes and any other schemes by the
Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Listing Date unless shareholders’
approval has been obtained.

The maximum number of shares issuable under the share options
to each eligible persons in the Schemes within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, or to any of their associate, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the securities at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors, and may commence from the date
of the offer of the share options and ends on a date which is not
later than 28 days from the date of the offer of the share options
or the expiry dates of the Schemes, if earlier. The exercise price of
the options is determined by the board of Directors in its absolute
discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(a) the nominal value of a share;

(b)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
dally quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediate preceding the offer date.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from 15 February 2019, after which no further options
will be granted or offered.

No share option has been granted since the effective date of the
share option scheme and there are no outstanding share options as
at 31 March 2024.
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As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
100,000,000 shares, which represented 10% of the Company’s
issued share capital, and the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme was about 4 years and 8 months.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Reporting Year
was the Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporations”,
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above, at no time during the Reporting Year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective associates nor was the Company and any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or
their respective associates to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS ' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the controlling shareholders or the Directors of the
Company and their respective associates is interested in a business
apart from the Group's business which competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business during the
Reporting Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors are
satisfied that the Company has maintained the prescribed
minimum public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued
shares under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules as at the date of this
annual report.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 March 2024 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 29 to 41 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report, the Board is not aware of
any significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) assists the Board
in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
systems of the Group, overseeing the audit process and performing
other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board
from time to time. The annual results of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which consists of two independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen,
Mr. Wong Che Sang.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") will retire, and being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution for its reappointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed. The financial statements
have been audited by HLB.

On BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chu Pui Him

Executive Director

Hong Kong

7 March 2025
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The Board believes that sound corporate governance is essential for
the long-term success and continuing development of the Group.
Therefore, the Board is committed to maintaining good corporate
standards and procedures, so as to enhance the accountability
system and transparency of the Group, and to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company's corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with all the code provisions set
out in the CG Code during the Reporting Year.

The Company will continue to review and upgrade its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG code.

MODEL CODE OF SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct for securities transactions. The Company had made
specific enquiry with the Directors and all of the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with required standards as set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2024 and
up to the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategies,
setting of performance targets, evaluating business performance,
monitoring and controlling the management performance
including designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement.
The Board is also responsible for ensuring sound and effective
internal control systems are maintained. Please refer to the section
headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” in this Corporate
Governance Report for further details. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
day-to-day management and operations of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of: (i)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Company’s Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring codes
of conduct and compliance manuals (if any) applicable to the
Company’s employees and Directors; and (v) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and company secretary of the Company in compliance
with the CG Code and the Listing Rules. Further, the Board
reviewed and monitored the Group’s policies and practices, and
noted that the Group had complied with the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements in all material respects during the year
under review. Lastly, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure of this Corporate
Governance Report.

The Company cannot ascertain the attendance of the then
Directors at the Board and committee meetings during the
Reporting Year, as well as their fulfillment of required training for
being Directors during the Reporting Year.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board considered that it possesses a balance of skills, various
experience, capabilities and expertise suitable for and relevant
to the Company’s businesses for providing sound judgment on
strategic issues and effective supervision and guidance of the
management. The Board includes experts in catering, food and
beverage area and professional in legal, accounting and finance.

In addition, the Board consisted of three independent
non-executive Directors during the Reporting Year, representing
more than one-third of the Board. As such, there is a strong
independent element in the Board to provide independent
judgment. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
given an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date of this
annual report, the Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
relevant requirements under the Listing Rules.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors, including two executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The board
members are listed below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tam Kar Wai (resigned on 17 May 2024)

Mr. Cheng Man Cheong (resigned on 11 August 2023)

Mr. Tan Jian (appointed on 14 August 2023 and
retired from office on 25 October 2023)

Mr. Yeung Ka Ho (appointed on 22 May 2024 and
resigned on 29 November 2024)

Mr. Chu Pui Him (appointed on 29 November 2024)

Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk (appointed on 29 November 2024)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong (Chairman) (resigned on 17 May 2024)
Mr. Fok Siu Keung (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tat Keung (retired from office on 25 October 2023)

Mr. Wong Wai Ming (resigned on 14 August 2023)

Mr. Leung Chun Kin (appointed on 14 August 2023 and
retired from office on 25 October 2023)

Mr. Wang Xianglong (appointed on 14 August 2023 and
retired from office on 25 October 2023)

Mr. Tang Tsz Tung (resigned on 25 October 2023)

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (appointed on 22 May 2024)

Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (appointed on 22 May 2024
and resigned on 29 November 2024)

Mr. Wong Che Sang (appointed on 22 May 2024)

The biographical information of the Directors is set forth on pages
84 of this annual report.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Pui Him and Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk have entered into
service contracts with the Company for an initial term of one year
from their respective dates of appointment, which is renewable
upon expiry, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and
termination in accordance with the provisions of the service
contract or by either party giving the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors have entered into a service contract with
the Company for a fixed term of one year from their respective
dates of appointment, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules
and termination in accordance with the provisions of the service
contract or by either party giving the other not less than one
month'’s prior written notice.

According to Article 84 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if the number of Directors is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years.

According to Article 83(3) of the Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of Members after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

In the upcoming AGM, Mr. Chu Pui Him, Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk,
Mr. Fok Siu Keung, Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and Mr. Wong Che
Sang will retire and be subject to re-election.

DIRECTORS’' CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Group noticed the importance of continuing professional
development for the Directors. The Directors are always kept
updated on the changes in the statutory, regulatory, market and
business environment of the Group. The Company will continue
to provide briefing and professional development opportunities for
Directors, if necessary.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Pursuant to Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, Board meetings
should be held at least four times each year.

All Directors will receive written notice at least 14 days prior to
regular board meetings. For all other Board meetings, reasonable
notice will be given. The Directors can attend the meetings either
in person or through electronic means of communication in
accordance with the Articles. All minutes of the Board meetings
were properly recorded for the Board's consideration.

To facilitate discharging the duties of the Director, all Directors
can freely communicate with the management for enquiring and
obtaining further information if required. The Directors also have
unrestricted access to the Company secretary who is responsible
for facilitating and advising the Board/committee procedures to
comply with regulatory and statutory requirements. Any Director,
should he/she wish, can seek independent professional advice at
the expense of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance practices, the
Board established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
on 25 January 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The terms of reference of the three committees are posted on the
Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at https://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/welifetech/.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this Report, the Audit Committee comprised two
members who are all independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and Mr. Wong Che Sang.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment and dismissal
of external auditors, to review financial statements and provide
advice in respect of our financial reports, internal control procedure
and risk management system of the Group, oversee the audit
process, develop and review our policy, and perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
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Up to the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee had
reviewed (i) the “Report to Those Charged with Governance”
prepared by the external auditor; (ii) the Group’s annual results
and annual report for the year ended 31 March 2024; (iii) the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management;
and (iv) the terms of engagement and remuneration of the external
auditor for its provision of audit and non-audit related services.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Report, the Remuneration Committee
comprised two members who are all independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and Mr. Wong
Che Sang. Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen is the chairman of the
committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

(i) making recommendations to the Directors regarding the policy
and structure for the remuneration of all of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies; (ii)
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing
and approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (iv)
considering and approving the grant of share options to eligible
participants pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
had reviewed and made recommendations on the remuneration
package of the Directors and the senior management.

Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments payable to Directors is determined by the Board
with reference to recommendations given by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board taking into account the Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group. A
summary of the Directors’ remuneration is set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Pursuant to Code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration payable to members of senior management
(excluding the Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March
2024 is set out below:
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Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals to be disclosed under Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules
are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statement of
this annual report.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Report, the Nomination Committee
comprised two members who are all independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Che Sang and Mr. Char Shik Ngor
Stephen. Mr. Wong Che Sang is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the corporate’s strategy; (ii) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (iv)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the Chairman of the Company.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy on 25 January
2019 (the "Board Diversity Policy”). The purpose of the Board
Diversity Policy is to set out the basic principles to be followed
to ensure that the Board has an appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards
of corporate governance. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the
selection of Board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and
specific needs, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
background, educational background, and professional experience,
which are the measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee is also responsible
for reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, developing and reviewing
measurable objectives for implementing the policy and monitoring
the progress on achieving these measurable objectives. The review
of the Board Diversity Policy and the measurable objectives shall be
carried out at least annually to ensure the continued effectiveness
of the Board. The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility
for identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members
of the Board and shall give adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy in selection of Board candidates. Board nomination
and appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis based
on the Group’s business needs from time to time with adequate
consideration of the diversity of Board members.
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Up to the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed (i) the board composition, size and structure, (ii) the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and (iii) the
appointment or re-appointment or succession of Directors. After
due consideration, the Nomination Committee has concluded
that based on the Company’s existing business model and specific
needs, the current composition of the Board satisfies the Board
Diversity Policy for the year under review.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During this Reporting Year, Mr. Yu Tsz Ngo was the company
secretary of the Company who resigned on 24 November 2023.
Mr. Wong Tat Keung was appointed on 24 November 2023 as
the company secretary of the Company, and resigned on 17 May
2024 subsequently. After this Reporting Year, Mr. Lam Man Kit was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 22 May
2024.

Mr. Lam Man Kit is the company secretary of the Company. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. As he is the external service provider to the
Group, his primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr.
Chu Pui Him, an executive director of the Company.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

For the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor, HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as follows:
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DIRECTOR" S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. However, the above statement should
be read in conjunction with, but distinguished from, the
independent auditors’ report in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 90 to 98 of this annual report which
acknowledges the reporting responsibilities of the Group’s auditor.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there are no uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore the Directors continue to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

To further confirm accountability, the announcement containing
the full year financial results is signed by the executive Directors,
Mr. Chu Pui Him and Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk, for and on behalf
of the Board to confirm that it is to the best of the Board’s
knowledge, nothing has come to the attention of the Board which
may render such results to be false or misleading in any material
respects. The Board approves the financial results after review
and authorizes the release of the results on the websites of the
Company (https://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/welifetech/) and the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) to the public.

Statement of the Company’s external auditors’ responsibilities in
respect of the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy and the declaration
and recommendation of dividends are subject to the decision of
the Board after considering the Company’s ability to pay dividends,
subject to Shareholders’ approval were applicable. As originally
stated in the Prospectus, the Board recommend dividends of
approximately 30.0% of the profit and total comprehensive income
after tax available for distribution of the Group to the Shareholders
in the coming financial years. However, the Directors will take
into consideration, among other things, the financial results,
operations, liquidity and capital requirements of the Group, general
business conditions and strategies, future business plans of the
Group and legal restrictions when determining whether or not to
recommend and declare dividends. The Board will also review and
reassess the dividend policy and its effectiveness on a regular basis
or as required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems (the “Systems”) of
the Group. The Systems are designed for safeguarding the assets of
the Group, assuring the proper maintenance of accounting records
and ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations. It
provides reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has established an internal audit function to
monitor and review the finance, operation, compliance and risk
management in compliance with the internal control manual and
relevant laws and regulations. The assessments will be presented
to the Board and the Audit Committee for their review and
assessments of the internal control system and risk management of
the Group.

Our Executive Directors, Mr. Chu Pui Him and Mr. Leung Yin
Cheuk are responsible to oversee of obtaining restaurant license in
compliance with certain laws and regulations. During the Reporting
Year and up to the date of this annual report, our Executive
Directors have reviewed of obtaining and renewing the restaurant
licenses for new and/or existing restaurants of the Group and
assured the compliance results to the Board.

During the Reporting Year, the Board has also engaged an
independent internal auditor to review the Systems of the Group.
The scope, the assessment results and the proposed improvement
recommendations were reported to the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s Systems and considered that the
Group’s Systems is effective and adequate. The Systems of the
Group will be constantly reviewed and optimised to coincide with
the strategy and development of the Group.

The Group admits its responsibilities under the provisions of Part
XIVA of SFO and the Listing Rules relating to the disclosure of
inside information to the public. Policies, procedures and internal
controls had been set up for handling and disseminating inside
information to ensure confidential and noticed to the public in a
timely manner.
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The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information are as follows:

1.  the Group conducts its affairs in a manner which complies
with the disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as
well as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong;

2. the Group has restricted access to inside information;

3. the Group has established procedures to announce or
publish the inside information such as financial results. The
finance team are responsible for monitoring the changes
and developments in their respective areas of operation
and reporting any potential or suspected inside information
events to the Board. Based on the information obtained
from internal reporting, the Board assesses whether any
of the information constitutes inside information which
needs to be released to the public. Should public disclosure
be required, the Board will determine the scope and the
timing of disclosure. If and when appropriate, the Board
may seek independent professional advice to ensure that the
Company complies with the disclosure requirements. The
Company discloses information to the public generally and
non-exclusively through channels including websites of its
own and the Stock Exchange, with an aim to achieve fair and
timely disclosure of information; and

4.  the Group has established and implemented procedures
for communicating the third party. Only executive Directors
and designated person are authorised to communicate with
parties outside the Group.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The AGM is the primary forum for communication between the
Board and the shareholders. At the AGM, the Directors (including
the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors) attend the meeting to answer the queries from the
shareholders and the external auditor of the Group is invited to
the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

Corporate Governance Report

EREIRW S

RIEREMARHEBNEF RS BEZEERIT -

1. FEBEUTELHRUBETHREREUARE
BRSRHEEHEREZE RGN IARHE
BERBERESINANEERSES ;

2. FEEBERFARHEEONEFEE;

3. FEBEERUAMIEMARHEE BN
R NEF - MBEEKEEERAZHEE
HENEBERER TREFTSTERTAATE
NREBAREESNES - REABERS
B EFENERSEEAENBERRARHE
BMARARER - HAFLARKE &F
ERARAERBHERFE - NEGHE EFEN
ESRBUIEXEER BRELARDETRER
EANBBBZRERE (BREEBS KRB
M) Bz R—RECHERARIREE R HXK
ERTEMAFREEM ; &

4. FEEERUMKEREB=FBEBENREF E
HOTEEREEABARELEBLSINMIAL
B e

IRRAE

RRBFAEGREFTUERRBENTIEHREB N
RRBFAE L EF (BEFRITESRBILIFN
TER) HEERZURTRRRE  TEBFAER
SNERZBETEERRBFEFARGUREERAES X
HENHRENFEHRERANSD Bt ER R ZHENIEIL T
FEBERE

Annual Report 2024 FE%§ 39



Corporate Governance Report

EEERWE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company
(other than on procedural and administrative matters) are taken
by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of voting by poll are
explained to the shareholders at the commencement of each
general meeting, and questions from shareholders regarding
the voting procedures are answered. Results of voting would be
declared at the meeting and published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company, respectively.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, the Board may whenever
it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings ("EGM"). Any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of Directors

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles and the "“Procedures for
Shareholder to propose a person for election as a director”
published by the Company on the Company's website, any
Shareholder may lodge a notice in writing (the “Notice”) to
nominate a person for election as a director of the Company at
the Company’s head office or the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting.
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For other enquires, shareholders may send their written enquires
or requests to the Company’s head office. The company secretary
shall forward shareholders’ enquiries and concerns to the Board
and/or relevant Board committees of the Company, where
appropriate, in order for the Board to respond to such enquires.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to investors,
the Group delivers information of the Group to the public through
various communication platforms, namely general meetings, the
Company’s website (https://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/welifetech/),
announcements and financial reports. Investors are encouraged
to share their views or enquiries to the Company in writing to the
Company’s head office.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting Scope

This is the sixth Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report published by the Company. By reporting the
policies, measures, and performances of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) in ESG
aspects, it allows our stakeholders to better understand the
progress and development direction of the Group in relation
to sustainability issues.

Operations that had no significant environmental and social
impacts contributed were excluded from the reporting scope.

Reporting Period

This ESG report covers the Group's overall environmental and
social performances of the business operations of its offices
in Hong Kong, from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 (the
"Reporting Period”), unless otherwise stated.

Reporting Guidelines

The requirements of Rule 13.91 and the reporting framework
set forth in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” (the “"ESG Reporting Guide"”) which is
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) serve as the reporting guidelines of this
report.

Reporting Principles

The reporting principles of this ESG report are governed
by “materiality” and “quantitative”. With respect to
“materiality”, we ensure that ESG issues discussed in
this report are sufficiently important and material to
investors and stakeholders including clients, communities,
employees, institutions, governments, non-governmental
organizations, shareholders, subcontractors, suppliers
and industry associations. With respect to “quantitative”,
Key Performance Indicators (“KPI") required by the ESG
Reporting Guide are measurable such that the effectiveness
of our ESG policies and management systems can be
evaluated and validated continuously.
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1.5

1.6

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group is determined to be a responsible enterprise and is
committed to perfecting its business and improving the local
community. In order to determine what issues are relevant
and material to our business with respect to sustainability,
the Group is aware that the key is to understand what issues
our stakeholders are most concerned about. We define our
stakeholders as people who affect our business or who are
affected by our business. In our daily business, we actively
exchange information with our stakeholders through our
transparent platform while we are devoted to continuous
improvement of our communication system. In addition, we
are committed to maintaining a long-term partnership with
our stakeholders and are actively engaged in addressing their
concerns with timely follow-up actions. The Group is working
to create a sustainable growth for the benefit of all our
stakeholders.

Reporting Framework

With reference to the ESG Reporting Guide and the Group's
business operation, the presentation of this ESG report
divides the relevant aspects and KPI, which are considered
to be relevant and material to the Group, into four subject
areas: Environmental Protection, Employment and Labour
Practices, Operating Practices and Community Investments.
An independent expert was engaged to provide assurance
to the content of this ESG Report and verify the relevant
disclosure of KPIs in this report.

A complete index in compliance with the ESG Reporting
Guide is also available at the end of this report for
reference. Except for provisions that the Group considers
are inapplicable to its operations, for which explanations
have been given on the rightmost column in the said index,
this report is compliant with all the “comply or explain”
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide.

Data Collection

Data in this report are extracted from the Group's internal
management system and statistics, and part of the data
collected in previous years. Unless otherwise stated, HKD is
used in this report as its functional currency.
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ABOUT WELIFE TECHNOLOGY

Group Profile

We are a full-service restaurant group in Hong Kong and
the PRC offering Cantonese dining and banquet services
including wedding banquet service.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group operated six restaurants in
Hong Kong, including four Chinese full-service restaurants
operating under the brand “Palace (J2fF) ", one restaurant
operating under the brand “Royal Courtyard (J£%8)“ at
Shek Mun, which possesses an outdoor garden for holding
wedding ceremonies and one restaurant operating under
the brand “Sea Moon Cuisine (8 3 E &) " at China Hong
Kong City.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

The Group values input and feedback of its stakeholders
as they bring potential impacts to the Group’s business.
Shareholders, management and employees of the Group
have been involved in annual general meetings, staff
meetings, stakeholder surveys, daily email and telephone
communications to share views regarding the Group's
operations and performances. The Group has specifically
engaged internal stakeholders to gain further insights on ESG
material aspects and challenges through stakeholder surveys
in the Reporting Period.

We take stakeholders’ expectations into consideration in
formulating our businesses and ESG strategies by utilizing
diversified engagement methods and communication
channels, shown as below.
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Stakeholders

Requirements and expectations

Description

& BERRPE biz:pa
Stock Exchange Compliance with Listing Rules o Regular Information Reporting
kS PR < LR s  TEHBEHER
Government Comply with business regulations and taxes e Accept guidance and supervision;
BT BFEERRNRRTE . Operation in accordance with law; and
o File tax returns and pay tax in
accordance with the laws.
s BERIESIKREE;
o  KIERE X
o RIARRAIR
Suppliers (a)  Fair competition/quality and price; o Conduct suppliers assessment regularly
HrEm (b)  Stable payment terms and/or prior the expiry of contract

Shareholders/Investors

BB/ REE

Media & Public
EERAR

Customers

=R

() ATHF HEEBRER;
(b) FRBEBIMRIFR

(a)  Financial performance
(b) Corporate governance
() Market image

(a) HWHBRIR

(b)y EBA

(0 TWHBER

Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human rights

EEER RIERERARE

(a)  Product quality

(b)  Customer complaint handling
(c)  Customer privacy protection
(a) EmBEES

(b) EPAEFEEE

(0 ERRMRE

under a rigorous and regulated system
EBRERZEENGIET T8k
HAE AN RANETHEE TG

Conduct general meetings;

Comply with market rules;

Publish annual and interim reports; and
Publish regular announcements in the
Stock Exchange.

BRKREARE ;

BETHIBRE
BEMEFRKRPR ; &

B PRE BRSNS ©

Improve community livelihood;
Implement eco-friendly measures to
reduce, reuse and recycle resources to
minimize environmental impact; and
Disclose the development strategy and
corporate governance.
HEHEE 5

B B AR E W EIRVIR R
B URBRVHIRRENEE , &
KEERBEREEER

Promptly respond to customer
complaints;
Address customer feedback and

opinions; and

Sincerely protect customer privacy.
MREIEE P
RRERRERER &
BilREZRME-
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Stakeholders Requirements and expectations Description
HinE ERRHEAE g
Employee (@) Good salary and benefits o Install facilities and arrange cleaning to
== (b)  Fair promotion and career improve the working and comfortable
development environment;
() Good and safe working environment Organize training and workshops;
(a) RETFMHEFE&ER . Establish communication channels; and
by AFEBEARBEZR . Sound compensation system.
(0 REZENIFIRIE o ZEBMEREHE R UETER
RRIBHEFENIRIE ;
o AR RS
O L_ngtﬂr@ EZ
e  BEHFMFIE-
Society Corporate Responsibility o Community charity; and
e EEF . Sustainable development strategy.

The Board and the management of the Company highly
support, engage in and are concerned with all the issues
related to ESG through the management of daily operations
and take appropriate actions whenever applicable.
ESG- related risks are identified through the risk control
procedures and the identified material aspects are strictly
managed through the Group’s policies and guidelines.
Management of the aspects have been described in separate
sections below. Through the continuous improvements
related to ESG issues, the Group has been reducing the
potential risks that may derive from environmental, social
and economic developments and to review the policies
on a regular basis in order to enlarge the benefit of the
stakeholders. The Group will continue to identify areas of
improvement for the concerned aspects and keep close
communication with its stakeholders to share and exchange
ideas for advancing the Group’s ESG management.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our ESG
approach and performance. Please give your suggestions or
share your views with us via mail to our head office.
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3.1

A

GOVERNANCE PO'LICY

At Welife Technology Limited, ESG is viewed as a business
philosophy that creates sustainable value for all our
stakeholders including but not limited to shareholders,
employees, business partners, customers, suppliers,
Government bodies and community members. By
embracing opportunities and managing risks derived from
environmental, social, and economic developments, our
ESG policy defines our long-term approach to specific
issues in two cornerstones: Environmental and Social,
which is instrumental in enabling our business to operate
in a sustainable manner. The Group is committed to the
long- term sustainability of our business development and the
communities in which we operate.

Environmental Policy

We value the importance of environmental protection
and the impact of the environment on the well-being of
communities. The Group pursues the following initiatives on
the environmental protection policy:

° To give due consideration to environmental issues in
our corporate decision-making process and actively
minimize the impact of our business operations on the
environment;

° To continue to improve our environmental performance
and comply with applicable environmental laws and
standards;

° To reduce energy consumption and improve energy
efficiency, conserve resources, use renewable or
recyclable materials, minimize the use of paper and
dispose of waste in an environmentally responsible
manner; and

o To raise staff awareness of environmental issues
through education and training and by posting the
Go Green Initiatives in the pantry, washrooms of
workplaces and restaurants for all staff.
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Social Policy

We consider our staff as valuable wealth of the Group and
the foundation for the development of the Group. We
also believe in giving back to the communities in which we
operate. The following are our policy on social aspects:

° To foster a supportive and quality working environment
by upholding employment practices that treat our staff
fairly and equally;

° To safeguard the rights and interests of our staff by
strict compliance with the applicable laws and never
harm their interests;

o To provide our staff opportunities for training and
development;

o To ensure a healthy and safe workplace and facilitate
meaningful communication within the Group;

o To maintain a high standard of integrity, transparency
and accountability in our operations, improving
our services based on evolving market demands,
and promoting sustainable development to our
stakeholders; and

o To support local initiatives that create effective and
lasting benefits to the community through corporate
philanthropy and mobilizing our staff to participate in
volunteer work.

This Policy shall be communicated to the Group’ s
stakeholders, including but not limited to its employees,
shareholders, suppliers, business partners and customers,
and made available to the public, in particular the investing
public.

The Group is committed to the continual development of this

Policy and its integration into the Group’s operations and will
review this Policy on a regular basis.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Go Green Initiatives

While the impact of global sustainability issues such as
climate change, plastic pollution, ecological and ethical
footprints is increasingly prominent, the Group is aware that
consumers are gradually becoming more sensitive to those
issues which start to influence the purchasing decisions of
average consumers. Where previous customers would rarely
question how a product was made or what it was made
of, corporates are now expected to clearly state where
products come from and how the ESG policies inform their
choice of processes, materials and deployment of human
resources. The change of consumer mentality is progressively
transforming purchasing decisions.

As such, it has never been more important for the Group to
implement good ESG practices into our business model. We
are committed to instilling the consciousness of resources
conservation, deeply indoctrinated the low-carbon concept
and environmental protection into the work and life of every
employee. We continue to seek business partners who share
our philosophy, commitment to environment conservation
and compliance with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

Although change is always difficult and requires careful
management, we firmly believe that these initiatives will
become part of our competitiveness and are capable of
reflecting our commitment to offering our customers the best
quality of services with the least adverse impact on our planet
and to building a greener and healthier environment together
with all the members of the community.

Corporate Environmental Policy and Compliance

Tremendous efforts in recent years have been made by
the Hong Kong government and numerous corporates in
the city to promote the construction of a green and low
carbon environment and ecological civilisation for the
community. The Group, as a member of this community,
is committed to upholding high environmental standards
and to disseminating the concept of sustainable and green
development via reducing waste discharge, carbon footprint
and resource consumption, devoting human and financial
resources for environmental conservation and promoting a
harmonious and sustainable development among people,
society and the environment.
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As a company that is principally engaged in offering
Cantonese dining service and banquet services in Hong Kong,
our operation in general does not consume extensive
natural resources, nor does it produce a significant amount
of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Nevertheless, we
endeavour to protect this planet and to build a sustainable
future for our next generations. The Group formulated
relevant rules and regulations for the sound and effective
management of energy consumption, greenhouse gas
("GHG") emission, as well as discharge of domestic waste
and sewage and other pollutants, which are highlighted
below.

o Actively promote a culture of environmental
sustainability among customers, workforce, and
supplier, encouraging their participation in green
initiatives;

o Comply with applicable environmental protection laws
and regulations;

o Define appropriate goals, objectives and targets on a
regular basis for our ESG management approach;

o Continuously improve the ESG management system and
maintain rigorous standards; and

. Communicate our environmental performance to
stakeholders and seek their involvement wherever
applicable.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with
relevant laws and regulations relating to air and GHG
emissions, discharge into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. The Group did not
violate any environmental protection laws or regulations of
the region where we operate, nor was it subject to significant
fines, non-monetary penalties and litigation relating to
environmental protection.
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4.1

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Emissions

Governance on Air and Greenhouse Gas (“GHG")
Emissions

Environmental protection has always been one of the
fundamental values of the Group. In the course of achieving
the Group’s business objectives and maximizing value
creation for its stakeholders, the Group strives to achieve a
balance between its operation needs and the environment
by using resources wisely and minimizing pollutants from its
business operation. The Group recognizes its responsibility to
contribute towards environmentally sustainable development
as reflected by its policy statement:

o Towards full compliance with environmental legislation
and other applicable regulations;

J Environmentally clean and use energy efficiently; and

o Prevent pollution by applying effective waste
management and environmental friendly work practice.

The Group has also formulated related environmental
initiatives to promote sustainability within its business.
The Group upholds the principles of emission reduction
and resource efficiency in its environmental management
approaches. This is achieved by implementing measures
that promote energy efficiency, wastes reduction and other
green initiatives. The Group is also committed to educating
its employees in raising their awareness of environmental
protection and complying with relevant environmental laws
and regulations. Within its policy framework, the Group
continually looks for opportunities to pursue environmentally
friendly initiatives, enhance its environmental performance by
reducing energy consumption and the use of other resources.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
concerning air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of non-hazardous waste, including but
not limited to the Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong
(Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Air
Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong (Chapter 311 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Main types of emission sources from the Group during
the reporting period were mainly diesel consumed by
Group-owned vehicle, use of electricity and disposal of
paper to landfill. The Group’s business does not involve in
consumption of packaging materials, production-related air,
water, and land pollutions which are regulated under national
laws and regulations. In addition, the Group’s core businesses
in financial services, car operating lease services and
property technology services do not contribute to significant
environmental or natural resources impact comparing to
businesses in other sectors. Most importantly, the Group still
strives to minimize its adverse environmental impact from its
business operation.

Air emissions

A total of 2,154.76 liters of diesel was used for the Group-
owned vehicles in the Reporting Period, contributing to
0.03 kg of sulphur oxides, 0.62 kg of nitrogen oxides and
0.05 kg of particulate matter.

AEBPRHSHAS RNFRREEEEERE
AERBBAEHENSE EHEAKMME
BEREEEM ZK%I%FT&&’T‘I%/EE
ERTREZ BEMEEEREERBZR
7}<7§Zii’fﬂ/’5* ItESh > AR EE E BB BY £ 5T
S AERTEERRE EWEERBRYE
PHRBEENZOEB I ERIRENBARE
BREEAFE REENE AEBENABA
REEEFEBEBERHNIFIREZE -

JESHERL

REEHR AEBEEAREHESH
2,154, 76 AF4M » % p0.03F &1t~
0.62F AR RK0.05F T Eh ) ©

Greenhouse gas emissions R E BN
Emission '
(in tCO2e)
Bk 2
Scope of Greenhouse BERE (LA mE = & 16 fik
Gas Emissions BERR &6 E Emission Sources BERUE =)
Scope 1 #EN
Direct Emission BEEHEW Diesel consumed by rEEBBEAE 6.53
Group-owned Vehicle THFERYSH
Scope 2 #i[E2
Indirect Emission EEESE Use of Electricity BHER 5,475.86
Scope 3 #[E3
Other Indirect Emission HMEREHEIR Paper Consumption RRIHFE 16.78
Total st 5,499.18
Note: BsE
1. Emission factors were made reference to Appendix 27 of the 1. BRBEEBEINS FEREHIZ2EERLETR

Main Board Listing Rules and their referred documentation as
set out by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, unless
stated otherwise.
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The Group has set up teleconference facilities and uses online

igate

meetings the in office to avoid business trips whenever
possible. When options are available, the Group also opts for
direct flights to reduce unnecessary carbon emissions.

Waste Management

Waste Management Policy

Waste reduction is the focus of our emission control efforts.
The Group's principal waste management policy endeavours
to achieve a green and paperless operation and a minimal
generation of food waste during our operation wherever
possible and practical. The Group, through the following
measures and objectives, strives to achieve the target of
reducing the amount of waste generated and aims at waste
management from the source.

We endorse the "“4-R Principles — Reduce, Reuse,
Replace and Recycle” as our key policy of waste
management;

During the Reporting Period, the Group participated
in the "Food Wise Hong Kong Campaign” driven by
the Environmental Protection Department to promote
awareness of the community on the food waste
reduction in Hong Kong so as to lessen the long-term
burden on landfills;

We reduce the amount of waste disposed such as
paper usage, plastic bottles, cooking oil and remained
amenities;

We extend our commitment to using sustainable
products into every aspect of the business — including
the furniture;

We generally do not provide plastic straws and plastic
stirring rods to customers unless plastic straws are
specifically requested;

We encourage all employees to reduce paper usage
through duplex printing, paper recycle and frequent use
of electronic information systems for material sharing or
internal administrative documents;
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o We encourage the increased use of reusable products,
such as envelopes, and better separation of waste
streams for recycling;

o We maintain 100% recycling rate of used toner
cartridges by collecting and sending all used cartridges
to recycling agents;

o We encourage minimum consumption of paper towels;

o We strengthen our employees’ awareness in
environmental management, waste reduction and
waste recycle, encourage them to be equipped with
appropriate skills and knowledge with respect to the
practice of sustainable development; and

o We closely keep up with the latest government
initiatives and policies in relation to waste
management, waste reduction and recycling campaigns
in order to allocate resources and formulate strategies
in a timely manner.

Hazardous Waste

Given our business nature, the Group does not directly
produce hazardous waste throughout our operations. To
reduce the environmental impact of chemical agents, our
cleaning contractor uses environmentally friendly detergents
and cleaning products. In addition, we encourage waste
recyclers to collect electronic waste such as old computers
from us wherever practical, ultimately reducing both the
monetary and environmental costs involved in the disposal of
these electrical parts that may become hazardous waste.

Non-hazardous Waste

Non-hazardous waste generated by the Group are mainly
food waste or alternatively known as kitchen waste, paper
towels and napkins. Designated containers are used for
separation and temporary storage of disposed food waste
before collected by authorized waste collection contractors.
The Group has been a partner of the “Food Wise Hong Kong
Campaign” promoted by the HKSAR Government since 2015
and undertakes to continue its dedication to food waste
reduction.
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Food waste, used cooking oil and grease trap waste are
properly separated and collected by authorised service
provider of waste collection. The Group assigned personnel
for food waste management and regularly review the
effectiveness of the food production, processing and final
disposal procedures adopted. “Food Wise"” signs are available
at the Group's banquet halls to promote the culture of
eating wisely. Statistics of food waste disposal are gathered
and analysed on a monthly basis, so as to evaluate the
effectiveness of our food waste management.

Moreover, the Group has policies in place to reduce its waste
generation through the implementation of certain controls at
its supply sources in order to manage the amount of waste
generated. For example, the Group has established a central
kitchen and has implemented cost control mechanisms
to achieve better control of its food purchase. The Group
actively monitors the consumption of food ingredients for
each restaurant and will make adjustment to its procurement
of food ingredients if necessary. These measures help
minimise excessive consumption of food ingredients and
reduce food waste. In addition, the Group is also an advocate
for low-carbon dining and waste recycling, as well as
reducing the use of disposal tableware.

Wastewater Discharge

The Group's operation consumes a significant amount of
water for sanitary and dining restaurants. In relation to
the Group's wastewater management, the Group carries
out oil separation and pre-treatment of wastewater before
discharge. The Group also contracts a sewage service to
properly handle its domestic sewage. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was in compliance with the Water
Pollution Control Ordinance ("WPCO") (Chapter 358 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

Besides educating its employees, the Group also engages
in regular assessments of its utility services. In particular,
the Group regularly checks for water-seepage or leaking
pipelines. if such problems are identified, the Group will
ensure that the defective parts causing the seepage or
leakage are replaced and repaired on a timely basis. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has had no issue of sourcing
its water.
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FY2024
Intensity
Unit 2024 (per restaurant)
202481 U E
==K i 202445 (S MERE)
Non-hazardous Waste BEEEY tonnes Mg 174.41 29.07
4.2 Use of Resources 42 ERER
Minimizing Energy Consumption BE R GEFHFE
The Group considers the conservation of natural resources to AEBTRAFREBRERESRETFEEL T

be an indispensable component to promoting a sustainable
business, and strives to minimize the energy consumed at all
levels in its operations by identifying and imposing measures
to increase energy and resource efficiency.

Through actively adopting a variety of environmentally
friendly measures, the Group is able to facilitate the efficient
use of its resources, including but not limited to, energy,
paper, water and other raw materials. Further, the Group has
implemented policies to raise awareness in relation to the
conservation of electricity and has adopted energy saving
measures in its daily operation as illustrated in the ESG
Report. Throughout the years, the Group put forth a strong
emphasis on minimizing the usage of mentioned materials
during our daily operations. The following table shows the
figures of material consumption in the Group’s business

RIS ERRVAE A ER 0 > W IB B FEE R B IR 1 BE
RRERMENER > BAORKBEMBDH
BEPKERBEREREFE

BERGRNZSRBIRFREH > SNERENTE
HERNBRMF A SFEETRIAETR 4R
IKAE MR o 5D > SIIRIT - HH B R EAR
SRR AEECBRBERMUBENEETH
WHAEREEEPRNEAEEM  2FLRK &
EEFEERTABEETEER LA L
Mite TRINTAEBEHEENMRUEEH
e

operations.
FY2024
Intensity
Unit 2024 (per restaurant)
20248 B EE
B 20245 (SREE))
Electricity B kwh FFBF 7,885,106 814,184
Purchased Gas SMNERAR kg T7 570,752 75,125
Unleaded Petrol IR L AT N/AT3E 2 N/ATE
Paper S kg F5 3,171 528
Water 7K m3 3 F5 K 301,803 30,300
Diesel Espis L AFF 2,155 277
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Energy

Direct Consumption
Consumption (in kWh)
RETRHFE
Energy Consumption Sources AE R H FE TR HIEHE (AT E B 5t)
Diesel | 2,155
Liter 2F 21,647
Electricity B 7,885,106
kWh FE.5¥ 7,885,106
Total “ET 7,906,753
Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives BETRFEFEE#

The Group actively adopts electricity conservation and energy
saving measures as well as other measures such as:

o Providing on-off and zoning control of ventilation
system in the workplace according to the operation
schedule when those rooms are not in operation;

o Encouraging employees to switch off IT devices, such as
computers and monitors when not in use;

o Installing LED lighting systems in our restaurants and
offices;

o Encouraging employees to use modern
telecommunication system to avoid unnecessary travel
arrangement;

o Placing “green” reminders on office equipment to
further enhance employees’ environmental awareness;
and

o Encouraging employees to adopt the aforesaid energy
saving practices.

Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

The water used by the Group is mainly accounted for the
consumption of sanitary and dining restaurants. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has actively adopted various
measures to educate the staffs to save water from daily life.
In order to establish proper attitude towards the use of water
in the office, the Group has posted water saving signs at
prominent places to remind employees to control the water
flow when washing hands, minimise tap water flow and
switch off the tap after use.
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Furthermore, with respect to wastewater management,
waste water is pre-treated with oil separation before
discharge. Sewage service is contracted out to a qualified
service provider for proper handling. Furthermore, the Group
conducts regularly inspection of its banquet halls’ water
facilities to ensure no water leakage. The Group ensures
all domestic sewage is properly discharged into the urban
sewage pipe network for subsequent sewage treatment.
During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the
WPCO.

Packaging Materials

Given our business nature, the Group does not have
manufacturing facilities and does not consume significant
amounts of packaging materials. However, the Group
is dedicated to engaging suppliers to reduce packaging
materials, to adopt an eco-friendly packaging design and
to explore alternative eco-friendly material to replace
conventional packaging.

(i) Eco-friendly packaging design
o Simple packaging — excessive packaging is not
recommended and packaging should be available
for recycling with the fundamental principle of
protecting the content from damage;

o Reusable design concept — the reuse of packaging
materials should be promoted through careful
design of the packaging and its material (such as
reusable red pocket); and

o Gift-packaging integration — wherever possible,
the packaging should be incorporated as a part
of the gift so as to raise their utilization and
minimize waste generation (such as thermal bags
used for the storage of Chinese-style sticky rice
dumplings).

(i) Eco-friendly packaging material

o Recyclable packaging materials, especially for
those containing recycled constituents (such
as recycled paper) or environmentally certified
products (such as FSC paper) and minimizing the
use of non-environmentally friendly materials
with low recyclable values (such as PVC plastic or
plastic foam);

o Eco-friendly or fully biodegradable packaging
materials (such as biodegradable bag for take-

away); and

o Biodegradable bathroom amenities packaging.
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4.3 Environment and Natural Resources

Resource Conservation

The Group is committed to building a cleaner environment
when carrying out our business, actively managing adverse
impacts on the environment and natural resources by
adopting green purchasing food in our dining service. In
addition to compliance with relevant environmental laws and
regulations to properly preserve the natural environment,
the Group has integrated the concept of environmental
protection into its internal management and daily operation
with an objective of achieving environmental sustainability.

During the Reporting Period, the Group implemented
“Sustainable Dining Policy” to preserve the Earth’s resources
and to avoid purchasing unsustainable food. In conformity
with the ’‘Sustainable Seafood Guide’ issued by the World
Wildlife Fund and Marine Stewardship Council, we purchased
seafood that has been sustainability-labelled and certified
from socially and environmentally considerate suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group encouraged
customers to use alternative dishes to substitute shark
fin at all of its banquet halls to ensure that the Group
provides food that is not only in the best quality but also
environmentally sound.

The Group strives to take steps to minimize negative
environmental impacts of the Group's operations.

In the course of complying with relevant environmental laws
and regulations to preserve the natural environment, the
Group has also integrated the concept of environmental
protection into its internal management and daily operations,
with the ultimate goal of achieving environmental
sustainability in the long-term. In addition to strategic waste
management and conserving resources, the Group aims
to procure food that has been sourced from socially and
environmentally considerate suppliers.

In the future, the Group will endeavour to continue its
commitment in environmental protection and strive to build a
greener and healthier environment to fulfil its responsibilities
as a member of society.
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Climate Change

Climate change may increase the frequency and intensity of
extreme events. Many countries are considered amongst the
most environmentally vulnerable nations in the world. Natural
disasters, such as cyclones, floods and droughts are not
new and local farmers have adapted to working with highly
variable climate and weather extremes through farming
practices, traditional knowledge and experience derived
knowledge. However, any changes outside of their sphere of
knowledge and experience can have significant implications
for agricultural production. Climate projections for the 21st
century and beyond, suggest an increase in events outside
of current experience with heatwaves, droughts and floods
increasing in frequency and intensity, cyclones increasing in
intensity, extreme high tides and storm surges continuing to
threaten low-lying islands and the continuing sea level rise
threatening contamination of groundwater.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not been
significantly impacted by climate-related issues while the
Group understands that climate-related issues are harmful
to the environment and have been rigorously regulated by
the United Nations’ Framework Convention. The Group
recognises the importance of identifying climate change risk
in order to mitigate the associated impacts on its business
operations. As a result, the Group has continuously evaluated
any impact arising from natural disaster and has taken
measures to mitigate its impacts.

SOCIAL MATTERS

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group fully understands that our corporate development
and long-term growth are largely driven by the continued
quality services delivered by our experienced and competent
workforce. As such, it is of paramount importance for
us to proactively manage our talent pipeline and career
development for the employees. The Group is determined
to uphold an open, fair, just and reasonable recruitment and
human resource policies, with respect to equal opportunities,
diversity and anti-discrimination.
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We encourage differences and individuality in employees,
with the philosophy that diversity can bring new ideas,
dynamics and challenges to our operations. We discourage all
forms of discrimination on gender, age, family status, sexual
orientation, disability, race and religion. Our employment
policy encourages hiring of talented people with physical
or mental disabilities. We are committed to supporting our
employees to maintain a family-friendly work environment
because we respect their roles and responsibilities in their
families. We strive to make sure employees and business
partners comply with laws and regulations, follow ethical
business practices and respect equal opportunities in
employment. We bring in new recruits and equip them with
necessary skill sets to develop a long-term rewarding career
with us.

During the Reporting Period, we strictly observed the
applicable laws and regulations and follow our employment
policies relating to recruitment and promotion, compensation
and dismissal, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare,
by providing competitive remuneration packages and
internal promotion opportunities, so as to recruit and retain
experienced employees.

All of the Group's employees were based in Hong Kong.
The Group will continue to strictly observe the applicable
laws and regulations and follow its employment policies
relating to recruitment and promotion, compensation and
dismissal, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare.
Further, the Group also aims to improve employee morale
by providing competitive remuneration packages, internal
promotion opportunities and performance-based bonuses.

Employment

During the Reporting Period, the Group re-structured its
workforce in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The
Group complied with the Labour Law of Hong Kong and
relevant employment laws and regulations throughout the
Reporting Period, including the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
by participating in the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) for our eligible
employees.
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In addition, during the Reporting Period the Group was
also in compliance with the Minimum Wage Ordinance
(Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and the
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) through the offering of competitive
wages, medical insurance, disability and invalidity coverage,
maternity leave and other forms of compensation to the
Group's employees.

Equal Employment Practices

The Group puts significant emphasis on the welfare of
employees whom it considers the Group’s most valuable
assets and the foundation of its business development.
Hence, the Group strives to attract and retain talents and
reconcile economical imperatives with well-beings, aiming at
reinforcing satisfaction, loyalty and commitment of human
capital, as well as treating our staff fairly and equally.

The Group has adopted comprehensive human resources
manual which includes policies and procedures applicable
to all staff. The Group offer employees competitive and fair
remuneration packages with discretionary year-end bonus
that are commensurate with their experience, performance
and job responsibilities. Annual review of salaries has been
proceeded based on employees’ overall work performance,
attitude, job knowledge, job responsibilities, punctuality,
qualifications, pay scale, the Group’s operating results, the
prevailing inflation rate and other conditions in the market.
All employees are treated fairly regarding recruitment,
training and development, appraisal of work performance,
promotions, rest periods, remuneration and benefits.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complies with
the relevant laws and regulations relating to employment,
including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Minimum Wage Ordinance of Hong Kong,
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance of
Hong Kong and the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of
Hong Kong.
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The Group provides opportunities for |nternal transfers
under employees’ request, provided that there is an opening
in the transferee department. It is also subject to appraisal
evaluation of the employee’s qualification and approval
by the head of the transferor and transferee department.
Annual performance appraisal serves as an effective tool for
department heads to evaluate employees’ capabilities, work
performances and contribution to the Group in accordance
with the Group's policies and procedures, setting the basis for
any salary adjustments and internal promotions. Whenever
possible, promotion opportunities will first be offered to
talented employees before sourcing candidates outside of the
Group. Employees are also welcomed to discuss their career
development with their respective department head or the
Human Resources Department.

An employee who wishes to resign should tender notice
in writing to the Group as stipulated in his or her letter of
appointment. Staff dismissals are based on the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of Laws of Hong Kong) or relevant
local laws and regulations, as well as the requirements
stipulated in the employment contracts.

Equal Opportunity

The Group provides a fair, equal opportunity, respectful and
pleasant work environment to employees. All practices are
designed to ensure processes of recruitment, employment,
assignment, training, promotion, compensation and offers
are based on employees’ qualifications, experience and/
or the terms and conditions, regardless of employees’ race,
color, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status,
sexual orientation, disability, political affiliation, personal
appearance, family responsibilities, matriculation or any other
characteristic protected under local law.
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Total Employees and Turnover 1ESBE R IR

As of 31 March 2024, the Group employed 261 staffs B E2024F3831H  AEEHER261%1E
in total. As an illustration, the workforce statistics by BoEREMR  UBHIKERBIZERER &%
employment type and gender, are illustrated in pie graphs AEI DB T4 st 8% U BliR B iR e
while the workforce statistics by age group and geographical AE B B 3 (& & o3 PO B T 47 51 2k

region are disclosed as bar charts:
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About half of‘the- Group's workforces are female wit
almost all of the staff being full-time employees. Over 66%

BEBET oAt LU BB T

of the Group's staff is aged above 46. All employees are 465% o Fam %R EEAZEI%EQDH FrEE IR
remunerated fairly, regardless of gender, age or nationality. RINEE A TFR

The annual turnover rates categorized by different gender, RIS IZ TR MR~ FhAHR & 8 7
age group and geographical region in the Reporting Period NEEREMEKLENT !

are as follows:
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The Group is committed to complying with relevant labour
standards and employment laws and regulations which are
applicable to our business. During the Reporting Period, no
material and significant disputes occurred between the Group
and the employees.

Health and Safety

Promoting Health and Safety

As the Group is principally engaged in offering Cantonese
dining service and banquet service in Hong Kong, employees’
health and safety is a paramount concern of the Group and
is vital to the operation of the Group's banquet restaurants.
As such, the Group has accordingly formulated a series of
personnel management policies to provide employees with a
healthy, safe, positive and motivated working atmosphere.

The Group’ s risk management system involves the
identification, prevention and management and mitigation
of risks and hazards throughout the Group’s offices and
restaurants as well as strict follow-up procedures for
accidents or personal injuries that have occurred during the
operation of the Group.

In addition, the Group maintains an internal record and
reporting procedures as regards work injuries to ensure that
the work injuries cases are properly addressed and handled
by the Group’s management. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had complied with the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The Group did not record any accidents that resulted in
death or serious physical injury. No material non-compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to health and safety of
employees were identified.
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The Group is hlghly aware that employees’ safety and health

is of paramount importance to our operation and therefore,
the Group is determined to attaching great importance to a
healthy, comfortable and safe working environment for our
employees which protects them from potential occupational
hazards, health and safety risks, in order to achieve zero
tolerance of accidents and injuries. The goals of our OSH
policy are highlighted as below.

The OSH management system aims at identification,
prevention and management of risks and hazards
throughout the workplaces as well as follow-up actions
for accidents or personal injuries;

The OSH management system defines appropriate
objectives and targets on a regular basis;

Zero tolerance of accidents and injuries;
Promotion of a safety culture among employees;

Commitment to the provision of a safe and healthy
working environment for the employees;

Commitment to human and financial resources for the
OSH management system;

Communication of our health and safety performance
with stakeholders and seek their involvement wherever
applicable;

Encouraging contractors to align with our OSH
standards and develop an OHS management system
based on hazard analysis and risk assessment of their
projects or operations; and

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations in
relation to occupational safety and health.

To achieve the goals of our OSH policy, the following
measures are adopted.

Installing air purifiers in relatively crowded areas;

Prohibiting smoking and abuse of alcohol and drugs in
the workplace;

Providing clean and tidy rest area such as corridors and
pantry;
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Ensuring sufficient ventilation and lighting system in the
offices and workplaces;

Providing adjustable chairs and monitors for eye
protection;

Setting up posters of proper working postures and
lifting method accessible on the intranet and at
appropriate locations in offices;

Organizing daily cleaning procedures by internal
employees and engaging external cleaning companies
to provide regular services such as pest control, garbage
collection, carpet cleaning, aquarium cleaning, grease
tank cleaning and air-conditioning systems;

Conducting fire drills to raise the staff's awareness of
fire prevention;

Improving the fire evacuation plans by providing first
aid kits and fire extinguishers in workplace in response
to emergencies;

Assigning competent and skilled staff to handle works
with critical hazards or impacts related to OSH;

Promoting the safety culture through various
communication channels such as safety campaigns,
discussion and sharing sessions;

Requiring contractors or sub-contractors to assist in the
implementation of policies, procedures and practices
related to OSH at work;

Organizing induction programs and safety training
programs to new employees such that they can be
familiar with our corporate policies in relation to health
and safety matters as quickly as they can;

Conducting review on the performance of the OSH
measures on a regular basis so that their effectiveness
and reliability can be maintained; and

Our OSH measures include conducting daily inspections,
formulating emergency response plans, conducting
risk assessment and refining its accident investigation
mechanism so as to ensure legal compliance and
minimize risks associated with OSH.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, by ensuring
that the employees are working in a safe environment in
respect of health, hygiene, ventilation, gas safety, building
structure and means of escape. The Group did not record any
accidents that resulted in death or serious physical injury. No
material non-compliance with laws and regulations relevant
to accidents, health and safety of employees were identified
during the Reporting Period. Summary of work-related
fatalities and injuries are shown in the table below.
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FY2024 FY2023 FY2022

2024 EE 2023 EBEE 20228 BEE

No. of Work-Related Fatalities K TIETHE 0 0 0

Rate of Work-Related Fatalities RT3 ETEEER 0 0 0
No. of Employee Suffered from BT ITE&%E

Injuries at Work 4 6 10

Lost Days due to Injury at Work ETEELNTIERH 176 474 196

To reduce work-related injuries, the Group commenced
investigations and filed detailed records of each accident
along with follow-up action. The investigation results enabled
the Group to improve the content of occupational safety
training, to increase employees’ safety awareness, to improve
the workplace safety and to remove potential hazards at
source.

Development and Training

Talent Management

The Group acknowledges and highly value continuous
staff training and development. Therefore, the Group takes
a proactive approach to expose employees to different
types of opportunities to advance their careers. On-the-job
training is provided to all employees through day-to-day
operation regarding the updates on Hong Kong Corporate
Governance Code, Employment Ordinance, financial
reporting, financial management, property technology, fire
regulations, prevention control measures for COVID-19
and etc. In addition, employees are encouraged to attend
internal and external training courses to be updated on the
latest guidelines and information on market and industry
development and requirements to improve their performance
and encourage their self-developments as well as maintain
their competitiveness within the industry.
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Internally, the Group offers its restaurant employees
comprehensive training programs to ensure that they possess
the appropriate qualities and adequate skill-sets when
serving the Group's customers. Such qualities and skill- sets
may include thorough knowledge of their work, good
etiquette and manners, effective communication, welcoming
personality and willingness to serve. The Group offers a
multitude of training programs that focus on different areas,
including specific service skillsets development, corporate
culture, health and safety, business ethics and corruption
prevention. The Directors believe that these training
programs not only boost the sustainable development of the
Group, but also facilitate the career prospects of individual
employees.

Apart from training courses, the Group values the long-term
career development of employees. As such, a standardised
internal promotion scheme has been established to provide
clear promotion guidelines for employees. At the same time,
the Group is committed to supporting employee career
development with systematic training plans to improve their
personal value and talent pool building. Specific measures
include internal chef training which is intended to train
kitchen staff such that they can master the knowledge and
skills required as a chef, and seeking potential managerial
candidates through special training and career guidance.

Training, Induction and Continuing Development of
Directors

Each Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment so that
he/she has appropriate understanding of the businesses and
operations of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Group is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from
time to time to ensure that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable
and regulatory requirements and the governance policies of
the Group. All Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed to
participating in any suitable training to develop and refresh
their professional knowledge and skills.
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The Group strives to provide training to the staff to help
them to keep abreast of the latest trend in the industry and
the dynamic pace in current market.
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Labour Standards

Prohibiting Forced Child and Labour

The Group condemns any form of child exploitation or forced
labour and is aware that these practices violate human rights
and international labour conventions. In this regard, the
group strictly prohibits the employment of any child labour
and forced labour. To prevent the aforesaid, the Group
explicitly states the age requirement of its employees in its
recruitment advertisements and new employees are required
to declare on their documents that they have provided true
and accurate personal data when they join the Group. The
Group's recruiters are also required to strictly screen and
review entry documents of the Group’s employees, including
medical examination certificates, academic certificates and
identity cards. During the Reporting Period, no child labour,
illegal labour or forced labour was reported.

To prevent forced labour practices, the human resources
management functions would ensure sufficient rest days
would be given to employees. Two specific measures will be
explicitly states the age requirement of its employees and
perform Identity Cards Control under Labour Ordinance. No
employee is made to work against his/her will or work as
forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment or coercion
of any type related to work.

Supply Chain Management

Upholding High Procurement Standards

Supply chain management has always been one of the key
aspects of the Group's operation. The Group encourages
all its business partners to adopt sustainability practices
during their operations thoroughly to facilitate sustainable
development.

To ensure the quality of food and service, the Group
has established a rigorous and regulated system of food
procurement and processing. The selection procedures and
criteria of the Group’s suppliers largely emphasise product
quality and consider environmental and social risk control.
The Group regularly evaluates the performance of its
suppliers, strengthens the management of environmental and
social risks and promotes the sustainable development of the
enterprise.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had approximately
160 suppliers located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The supply
chain management team conducts an annual evaluation on
the Group’s approved suppliers to ensure that their suppliers
meet the Group's requirements. The regular assessment
includes on-site inspections of the hygiene condition of the
Group's manufacturing facilities, the production control of
the Group and the Group's implementation of its quality
control system. With more than 10 years of operation, the
Group has maintained good relationships with its suppliers,
with an emphasis on a steady supply of fresh and quality
food ingredients.

The Group also implements the Category management,
which is a retailing and purchasing concept in which the
range of products purchased by a business organization or
sold by each restaurant is broken down into discrete groups
of similar or related products; these groups are known as
product categories (examples of grocery categories might be:
frozen food, sea food, pork meat, vegetables, fruits, tinned
food, and beverage etc.).

Product Responsibility

Ensuring Good Service and Product Quality

In discharging its responsibility to provide quality food and
service, the Group ensures that the food ingredients are
safe, fresh and of good quality upon delivery, in storage and
during processing. The Group purchases ingredients that
are the most suitable for dining service and banquet service
in Hong Kong and strictly implements a high standard of
procurement to select diversified quality ingredients for its
customers.

As a responsible catering service provider, certain measures
have been implemented by the Group, including, but not
limited to the following:

J Adopting standardised hygiene control procedures in
the restaurants; and

J Engaging external consulting companies for freshness
checks.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has also complied
with the relevant laws and regulations relating to advertising,
such as the Trade Description Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), by ensuring that there are no false and
misleading messages in its advertisement and promotional
activities.
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Quality assurance process and recall procedures
Measurements obtained at the “performance moment” of
a food product are based on consumers providing sensory
responses. At this critical step, feedback is necessary
to ensure quality requirements are met and customer
expectations exceeded.

Food Test audits will provide valuable information. They are
typically conducted on products retrieved at the point of
purchase, but they also may be done at locations throughout
distribution, through a three-step process:

Develop a plan for a thorough product examination. Elements
to consider are product display; presentation, rotation
(FIFO), age, availability, and package condition; damage,
seal integrity, legibility of code dates, weight, and product
analysis; label claims, physical characteristics, nutritional
analysis, taste testing, palatability, and shelf life; and many
other performance indicators. Therefore, we have regular
Quality Sampling Testing recorded by Purchasing Department
or taste testing verified by Top Management and available
food quality audit can gather as much information as desired.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to compliance with relevant laws
of intellectual property right by valuing and protecting its
intellectual properties through periodic trademark renewals.
Violation of the above regulations may result in disciplinary
actions including immediate termination of employment
without any compensation and notice. No material non-
compliance in relation to intellectual property rights laws and
regulations was recorded during the Reporting Period.

Confidentiality

Customer data protection

In the course of its operations, the Group is engaged in
developing and strengthening its data mining and analytical
capabilities to enhance the catering experience of its
customers. As such, the Group was engaged in collecting and
retaining of its customer’s information.

The Group undertakes to strictly comply with relevant laws
and regulations in relation to privacy to ensure that all
the data in relation to its customers is securely kept in the
Group’s internal system with access control. The Group also
sets out data privacy requirements in its corporate policies,
under which customer data would be used exclusively for
matters relating to the Group’s operation. The Group strives
to ensure that all collected data kept is free of unauthorized
or accidental access, processing, deletion or other use.
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Complaints Handling

The Group has set up various complaint and feedback
channels, including guest comment cards, telephone hotline,
social media channels, emails and food critic websites
(e.g. Openrice), to collect suggestions and advice from the
Group's customers. The customer feedback is compiled daily
in the restaurants and are further reviewed by the relevant
personnel.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive
any material complaints and no material claims were made
against the Group’s food, nor were the Group's restaurants
subject to any investigation with respect to food hygiene by
any government authorities or relevant customer protection
organisations.
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Anti-Corruption

Commitment to Anti-Corruption

The Group emphatically affirms its zero-tolerance stance
regarding corruption, fraud, and all other behaviours
that severely violate professionalism and work ethics. The
Group adheres to a high standard of integrity, transparency
and accountability in its operations. As stated in the staff
handbook, without prior permission from the Group,
employee shall not be engaged in any work or be involved
in any business either alone or jointly with any other person
or persons, or with a company directly or indirectly related to
the reward or receipt of commission or fee from the Group.
Employees are not allowed to solicit or accept any advantage
in money or in kind from any parties having business relations
with the Group for their personal benefit. Employees are
also prohibited to invite any of the parties having business
relations with the Group to attend their personal banquets,
dinner parties and/or personal gathering.
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The Group has set up an effective whistleblowing policy to
encourage employees for reporting of fraud, corruption,
bribery, extortion and money laundering when it occurs.
In case of suspected corruption or other criminal offences,
a report will be made to the Hong Kong Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”) or the appropriate
authorities in the PRC. Any employee in breach of this
regulation is liable to be summarily dismissed and may render
himself or herself liable to prosecution under Section 9 of the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong.

The Group encourages honesty, integrity and fairness in
all aspects of its business and upholds a high standard
of business ethics and prohibits any form of bribery and
corruption. As a result, the Group has developed a series of
anti-fraud and anti-bribery policies. Also, the Group conducts
regular systematic fraud risk assessments and continues to
monitor the effectiveness of risk control while addressing
any deficiencies and enforces its fraud mitigation policies
through collaboration with external parties. Apart from the
anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies, the Group also
encourages all its employees and business-related parties,
including customers and suppliers, to proactively report any
suspected misconduct issues to the Group.

Regarding the training provision, the Group conducts
regular assessments on systematic fraud risks, continues to
monitor the effectiveness of risk control while addressing any
deficiencies and enforces its fraud mitigation policies through
collaboration with external parties.

Apart from the anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies, the
Group also encourages all its employees to participate other
professional association to explore the practical issues of
corporate governance and risk management in a company.
Through content and case study, participants will be able
to gain the understanding and experience to recognize the
problems and difficulties of applying the best practice, and
judgments and decisions that company leaders and managers
will have to make while facing a variety of situations and
contexts.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had complied
with the relevant laws and regulations relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, which have an
impact on the Group, as well as the corporate policy of
anti-corruption. No cases of corruption had been reported
during the Reporting Period.
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5.8 Community Investment

Contributing to the Welfare of Society

The Group is highly concerned with the issue of food waste
that the industry is commonly facing in Hong Kong. To
further promote the awareness of the community on food
waste reduction, the Group, during the Reporting Period, was
actively involved with the “Food Wise Hong Kong Campaign”
organized by the Environmental Protection Department
as part of the Group's effort in “building a sustainable
environment’ and ‘serving the community”.

Going forward, the Group will continue to foster the culture
of active participation in community services, encouraging
our staff members to be actively engaged in voluntary
services and join hands together to disseminate the spirit of
services in the community where we all depend. Further, the
Group is actively committed to advancing society through its
active involvement in the community.

The Group uses its best endeavour to help local communities
and those in need through volunteer work, donation
programs and social enterprise support systems. The Group
actively cooperates with charitable organisations to organise
social activities to support public welfare and charitable
projects so as to establish a good corporate image while
fulfilling social responsibilities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively cooperates
with charitable organisations to organise social activities
to support public welfare and charitable projects. Through
actively participating in multiple meaningful charity events
such as Pok Oi fundraising event organised by the Pok
Oi Hospital, in which the Group contributed a donation
of approximately HK$960,000 of the reputable charity
organizations in Hong Kong, Pok Oi Hospital 2023/2024.
The Group continues to support the organization’s provision
of quality medical, educational and social services for the
needy of our society. Overall, it could help establish a good
corporate image while fulfilling social responsibilities.
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Lastly, so as to build a better society, we also active involved
and partnered with local non-profit organizations to organize
and take part in a variety of charitable activities and actions
such as health education and action, poverty relief action,
children, elderly, underprivileged groups, animal welfare
and environmental protection. We put the best effort and
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resources in helping the local communities and people BIEEARERUTRIE !

in needs through multiple channels including community

services and sponsorship programs, including but not limited

to the following:

e Liens Club of New Territories East Limited e WMARMTFEERLE

e Association for the Welfare Services of Elders e BHAEAEARVNBRBHIZERLAD

(Hong Kong) Limited

o The Association for Hong Kong Catering Services o e

Management Limited

6. INDEX FOR ESG REPORTING GUIDE 6.
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Aspect A1: Emissions
EBEA1 . HEs

General Disclosure

—fRIKE

KPI A1.1

FASEIEIRAT

/8

Information on:
(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
nonhazardous waste.
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The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
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Emissions — Governance on Air and
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions;
Air Emissions; GHG Emissions;
Measures to Mitigate Emissions; Waste
Management; Go Green Initiatives
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Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.
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Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
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Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
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Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and with reference to per unit produced.
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environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
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Use of Resources — Minimizing Energy
Consumption
BREA-BERDERERE

Use of Resources — Minimizing Energy
Consumption
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Use of Resources — Minimizing Energy
Consumption
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Aspect A4: Climate Change
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related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.
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KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
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Aspect B1: Employment
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(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
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diversity, antidiscrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
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(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
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relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.
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Subject Areas,
Aspect, General
Disclosure and

KPIs Description
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Aspect B3: Development and Training
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General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards
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General Disclosure Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
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General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain.
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
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General Disclosure Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress.
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
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Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
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Directors and Senior Management

HEf R S B

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chu Pui Him

Mr. Chu, aged 37, graduated from Hong Kong Shue Yan University
with a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) degree in Accounting.
He had worked in an international audit firm as an assistant
audit manager. He then worked as a senior project manager in a
listed company in Hong Kong and was responsible for corporate
management matters such as project management, finance and
fund-raising arrangement. Mr. Chu has extensive experience in
corporate management and operations of both listed and unlisted
companies.

Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk

Mr. Leung, aged 38, has over 10 years of trading experience
in the consumer electronic products industry. He is now actively
involved in local catering and related businesses.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Fok Siu Keung

Mr. Fok, aged 65, has over 40 years of experience in the catering
and banquet service industry. He has worked in renowned hotels
and government institutions in Hong Kong, gaining extensive
experience in catering services.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen

Mr. Char, aged 75, is currently a Barrister-at-Law. As advised
by Mr. Char, Mr. Char holds a bachelor of laws (Honours) from
the University of London and a master degree in Social Sciences
from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Char was also the chief
investigator and senior assignment officer of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption in Hong Kong from 1976 to 2004
and a chief executive officer of Garner Forest Industries Limited.

Mr. Wong Che Sang

As advised by Mr. Wong, Mr. Wong, aged 72, has more than
50 years of experience in the catering and banquet industry. He
has worked in various famous hotels and eateries in Hong Kong
and mainland China, acquiring senior and rich experience in
management and operations of catering and banquet services.
Mr. Wong is also active in industry associations and organizations.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
N A% B

For The Year ended 31 March 2024 & Z2024F3831HIEFE

BT &t EH A R F
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF WELIFE TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Welife Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 92
to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of
our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and as to whether they have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the executive directors of the Company (the “Existing Directors”)
were unable to locate: a) certain books and records and the
corresponding supporting documents of certain subsidiaries,
namely, the Eternal Grand Developments Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Eternal Grand
Group”) and Global Gourmet Catering Services Management
Limited and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as the “Global
Gourmet Group”) (the “Lost Records”) and b) certain supporting
documents of the books of account of the Company (the “Lost
Supporting”).
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

The Existing Directors advised that, as of the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, despite their repetitive
attempts to contact the Previous Directors, who were responsible
to maintain proper books and records for the Group (the
“Previous Directors”), the Existing Directors were unable to reach
any of the Previous Directors to locate the Lost Records and the
Lost Supporting. As a result, the Existing Directors were unable to
provide complete and adequate accounting books and records and
supporting documents for us to perform our audit in relation to
the Company, Eternal Grand Group and Global Gourmet Group.
We were therefore unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to ascertain the following:

(i) The potential impacts on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group arising from the Lost
Supporting

a. The potential impacts of the Lost Supporting on

the financial statements of the Company

We were unable to ascertain as to the occurrence,
accuracy, completeness, cutoff, classification and
presentation of the transactions of the Company
have been presented in its statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and the valuation,
existence and completeness of the related items have
been presented in its statement of financial position in
accordance with HKFRSs. Since the financial statements
of the Company form part of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, the inability to perform
sufficient audit procedures on the Lost Supporting
results in the same limitation on our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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The potential impacts on the consolidated financial

ON (Continued

statements of the Group arising from the Lost
Supporting (Continued)

b.

The potential impacts of the Lost Supporting on a
business development consultancy agreement

As disclosed in Note 39, on 28 June 2024, the
Company received a statutory demand issued by the
lawyer of an independent third party (the “Service
Provider"”), pursuant to a business development
consultancy agreement entered into between the
Company and the Service Provider with a contract
amount of HKD9,400,000 during the year ended 31
March 2024 (the “Consultancy Fee”). The Existing
Directors have been seeking legal advice and evidence
for the services rendered by the Service Provider and
the validity of the agreement and concluded that
the Consultancy Fee should not be recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 of the Group.

However, due to the lack of sufficient appropriate audit
evidence arising from the Lost Supporting to ascertain
the nature and details of the Consultancy Fee, we
were unable to carry out audit procedures necessary to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to ascertain
the occurrence, accuracy, completeness, cutoff,
classification and presentation of the transactions
on how and whether the Consultancy Fee should be
recognised by the Group in accordance with HKFRSs.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

()

38

The potential impacts on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group arising from the Lost
Supporting (Continued)

C.

The potential impacts of the Lost Supporting on
debts claimed by petitioners

As disclosed in Note 37, the Existing Directors received
a petition dated 27 October 2023 (the “Petition”)
from certain creditors (the “Petitioners”) filed in the
High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, which claimed that the Company may be
wound up by the High Court on the grounds that
it was unable to pay its debts due to the Petitioners
of HK$13,604,000 (the “Debts”). A settlement was
reached on 10 July 2024 between the Company and
the Petitioners. Based on the result of the settlement,
the Existing Directors recognised a litigation loss
and provision of approximately HK13,804,000 (the
“Litigation”), in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2024 and the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2024 of the Group,
respectively.

Due to the unavailability of sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to audit the financial information of the
Company arising from the Lost Supporting, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves as to the validity, commercial
substance, legitimacy, occurrence, completeness,
accuracy, classification and existence of the Litigation.
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(ii)) The finanéial impact to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements due to the Lost Records

Due to the unavailability of the books and records and
sufficient appropriate audit evidence arising from the Lost
Records to audit the financial information of the Eternal
Grand Group and Global Gourmet Group as mentioned
above, we were unable to carry out audit procedures and
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence necessary
to satisfy ourselves as to the completeness, existence
and valuation of the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and the occurrence, accuracy,
completeness, cutoff, classification and presentation of the
transactions of the Eternal Grand Group and Global Gourmet
Group for the year ended 31 March 2024.

There were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could
adopt to obtain sufficient evidence regarding the matters as set
out in items (i) and (ii) above. As a result of these matters, we were
unable to determine whether any adjustments might have been
found to be necessary in respect of the items as set out above, and
the elements making up the consolidated profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

A A A BAS BR 58 S o0 B DA R (R 38 25 1Y 50 5%
MELESEIBENSHE UHEARE
REBMBRKEEERNYEENETET
BAELINTEA R M ESRSBENSE
Ei o LS HMAEMIN2024F3831HMEE
REREEENTEY EEAMGEUREE
2024F3B3MHIEFERZEBRRKERSE
B F 8 4~ R SR # b D4E
K2R

HAEEFBEML MBS EFLUERAR
EXMRVBREENEDER AR ZRERE &M
BEREM LAEE BAGREEa REtEER
THNER - GEMBRRRUARGEHBREP
MERREFLERNHERESBLE-




Independent Auditors’ Report
N A% B S

For The Year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charge with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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: OR THE
SOLIDATED FINANCIAL

\

AUDIT OF THE CON

STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA
and to issue an auditors’ report sole to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Mr. Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practising Certificate Number: PO5895

Hong Kong, 7 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A ey TR e HLAN 2 i W e 7%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024F3831HIEE

Revenue e

Other income HAau A

Other gains or losses, net Hh sl B85 %8

Cost of inventories consumed FRFERFE R

Staff costs BT A

Property rentals and related expenses MEREREMAS

Utilities expenses NHEREF

Depreciation of property, plant and ME--BEKRKREITE
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE

Other expenses Hipsz

Finance costs A

Profit/(loss) before tax BRI ENER], (E518)

Income tax expenses FriSTRRsZ

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ownersZs A S A A EIEEREF,
of the Company (E518)

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to E & ] §EE #7748 F #8725 H9

profit or loss: EH
Exchange differences arising on translation (B EINEHBEEN
of foreign operations (ERE%R

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive EREH (B8 RE2EWA
income/(expense) for the year /(%) 42%8

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive EATEE NEEEREFR,
income/(expense) for the year attributable (B518) R2EW A (i)
to owners of the Company sk

Earnings/(loss) per share sREHN, (B8
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —BEARRE#E B
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11

13
12

15

2023
20234
HK$'000
FET
421,309 304,356
5,191 16,157
7,789 2,361
(102,207) (77,331)
(146,614) (113,418)
(22,423) (20,741)
(21,502) (18,639)
(7,808) (8,902)
(45,137) (47,915)
(52,676) (35,365)
(6,777) (7,503)
29,145 (6,940)
(300) =
28,845 (6,940)
131 40
28,976 (6,900)
28,976 (6,900)
2.5 (0.6)




Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deposit placed for a life insurance policy

Rental deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverable

Time deposit with maturity over
three months

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Provision for reinstatement costs

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
EN NG 4]
ERREE
REASFRERE
HERE

MEEE
s

B 5 T EL A FE W IE

BILAEIETE

I EBE=ERNERTMN

IRITAE R IR E

mEEE

B 5 K ELMFE 1 RUIE

AR
IRITE™
HE&R
FEIIRIAE
BRI A

BIEURSNERE S

BWEERRBEME

16 9,589 16,053
17 36,567 84,581
19 16,414 16,178
20 17,133 25,473
79,703 142,285

22 1,040 1,423
20 24,641 16,153
= 140

23 2,000 -
23 76,289 95,797
103,970 113,513

24(a) 45,292 30,602
24(b) 18,630 31,460
25 14,448 37,382
17 47,623 69,688
300 =

26 776 985
127,069 170,117
(23,099) (56,604)

56,604 85,681




Viarch 2024 8E 2024538318 IEEE

Non-current liabilities ERBIEE
Lease liabilities HEaE
Contract liabilities aH8E

Other payables HAh I8

Provision for reinstatement costs B8 B A 1

Net assets BEE

Capital and reserves B K #E

Share capital [N

Reserves G

Equity attributable to owners of the TATEE ANEGER

Company

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 187 were
approved and authorised for issued by the board of directors on
7 March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHU Pui Him
P30T
Director

EF

17 11,971 68,905
24(b) 133 140
24(a) 878 1,198

26 2,779 3,571

15,761 73,814
40,843 11,867
27 11,500 11,500
29,343 367
40,843 11,867

FERNEEFISTENGESVMBRERTAEZEEFT TH2025
FIF7TAMEREETERRAUTALTREES !

LEUNG Yin Cheuk
REH
Director

4




At 1 April 2022 1?2022&4R18 11,500 135,967 24,470 (153,170) 18,767
Loss for the year FRER - = = (6,940) (6,940)
Exchange differences arisingon BB EBEER

translation of foreign operations ~ EREE - - 40 - 40
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive ERiEF]/ (518) k2E

income/(expense) for the year s/ (%) 85 = = 40 (6,940) (6,900)
At 31 March 2023 and 12023E3A318 R

1 April 2023 1202354518 11,500 135,967 24,510 (160,110) 11,867
Profit for the year FREF - - - 28,845 28,845
Exchange differences arising on BB EBEER

translation of foreign operations ~ EREE - - 131 - 131
Profit and total comprehensive FREHNREERZEE

income for the year - - 131 28,845 28,976
At 31 March 2024 1202438318 11,500 135,967 24,641 (131,265) 40,843

Note: Other reserves represented (i) the difference between the aggregate
amount of issued and fully paid share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange for the entire equity interests in
the subsidiaries as part of the group reorganisation; (ii) the difference
between the consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary and the
fair value of the subsidiary acquired from the common shareholder
of the Company; (iii) deemed contribution arising from the listing
expenses borne by the controlling shareholder of the Company and
waiver of the need to reinstate the premises for a restaurant rented
from the controlling shareholder upon end of the lease term; and (iv)
exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations.

e
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AETHXELTARASZERRKREABENRIE
B URERRRL—BAEEENENERE
BEEEFENRAR  URVREBIINEBEERN




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

e Bl i

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024838310IEE

Operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment
Impairment loss on goodwill
Interest on lease liabilities
Loss on written off on property, plant and
equipment
Gain on termination of lease
Gain on lease remeasurement
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Premium and handling charges on
a life insurance policy
Interest on bank borrowings
Unwinding of discounting on provision for
reinstatement costs
Reversal of provision for reinstatement cost
Bank interest income
Exchange gain
Imputed interest income on rental deposits
Interest income from deposit placed for a life
insurance policy
COVID-19-related rent concessions

Operating cash flows before movements in working

capital
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Decrease in contract liabilities
Provision for reinstatement costs utilised

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes refunded

Net cash generated from operating activities
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2023
20234

HK$'000

FET
29,145 (6,940)
45,137 47,915
7,808 8,902
= 772

320 =

= 14,561
5,436 6,203
560 =
= (4,606)
(8,669) =
= (13,088)

298 282
1,297 1,274
44 26
(1,645) =
(1,578) (615)
(1) (42)
(253) (369)
(533) (529)
= (4,620)
&

77,366 49,126
383 515
123 3,269

13,745 10,123

(13,037) (5,018)
(391) =

78,189 58,015
140 1,866

78,329 59,881




Investing activities KREEH

Interest received EWF 2

Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HENBRABMNIRE ML FE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment W B2~ TR B e 5%

Placement of time deposit with maturity over three FAZIEAHBB=EA K
months EHFER

Withdrawal of time deposit with maturity over three I2EX 2| 8 B 838 =& 5 7Y
months EHFER

Net cash inflow arising from acquisition of WHERBABELDN
subsidiaries REMAEER

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing  &E ;&8 (FrA) EEH

activities HE P

Financing activities B EE

Repayment for lease liabilities BEREEAE

Repayment of borrowings BEER

Interest paid B E

Net cash used in financing activities BB EEFTRAIRE R

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash HERBEESLEY GHL) /Em
equivalents RER

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of F#RE& KRS ZHEY
the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEHNTE

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the FEXRIREKRIRELZEY
year

1,578 615

= (124)
(1,599) (2,596)
(60,000) =
58,000 20,002
= 66
(2,021) 17,963
(71,689) (53,927)
(22,934) (7,066)
(1,297) (1,274)
(95,920) (62,267)
(19,612) 15,577
95,797 80,180
104 40
76,289 95,797




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I S R b

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

1.

98

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
7 June 2018 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the laws of Cayman Islands and its shares have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 15 February
2019. The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Company’s
information section to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(for the purpose of this report, excluding Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan) (“PRC").

The Company is held by Brilliant Global Assets Limited and
Happy Century Global Limited which are directly owned by
Mr. Chen Sugiang (“Mr. Chen”) and Mr. Lo Chor Cheong
Colin (“Mr. Lo") and has been regarded as the controlling
shareholder of the Group (“Ultimate Shareholder”) with
effect from 24 November 2023. Prior to the share transfer
which took place, the Company was held by Wonderful
Cosmos Limited, which is directly owned by Mr. Tam Kar Wai
(“Mr. Tam"). For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 18 January 2024.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong

Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

Welife Technology Limited #7145 ERHS BRAE]

—RER

KABINR2018F6B7HEHEHERERE
BEAEAMRILIAERRERARDRERD
H2019 2B 15HEREABMERZFBREA
B (TBEZRPRY) EMR EE o A A B MM EE K
FEE MBI ERA B B — R

8o

ARBB—RBBLERAT HHBATLE
REREBRBEARLAE GARETS
TEESHE RPIRANE) (hE) EEHHE
8o

Z5/A T fBrilliant Global Assets Limited &zHappy
Century Global Limited$ 5 » 5% %A 5] HFRER A
Sod (TRRE%E)) RERHEYE (BXE)) B
BBEALEWEAREENZERIEER (TREKR
) 0 B2023F 11 B24BEEM - RN EHE
Al » Z</A B FAWonderful Cosmos Limited}F 74 >
Mz ABHERESE (IBRE) BEES-
FIEFR2RAREHA2024F1818HH R

=
= °

REMBRE BT (TEm) 25 MBIk
WAERBZINEER -



A ATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the current
period for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts
the October 2020
and February 2022
amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement Policies
2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two model Rules

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRS in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New Guidance on accounting implications of the
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong issued by HKICPA

In June 2022, the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region gazette the Hong Kong Employment
and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (“Amendment Ordinance”),
which will come into effect from 1 May 2025 (“Transition
Date”). Once the Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an
employer ca no longer use any of the accrued benefits
derived from its mandatory contributions to mandatory
provident fund (“MPF") scheme to reduce the long service
payment (“LSP”) in respect of an employee’s service from
the Transition Date (the abolition of the "offsetting
mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect of the service
before the Transition Date will be calculated based on the
employee’s monthly salary immediately before the Transition
Date and the years of service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published the captioned
accounting guidance relating to the abolition of the
offsetting mechanism. In particular, the guidance indicates
that entities may account for the accrued benefits derived
from mandatory MPF contributions that are expected to be
used to reduce the LSP payable to an employee as deemed
contributions by that employee towards the LSP.

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of the
offsetting mechanism, the Group has applied the above
HKICPA guidance and changed its accounting policy in
connection with its LSP liability.

The change in accounting policy in the current year had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance
and HKFRS 7 Arrangement?

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

Hong Kong Interpretations Presentation of Financial
5 (Revised) Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that contains
a Repayment on Demand

Clause?
Amendments to HKFRS Annual improvements
Accounting Standards to HKFRS Accounting

Standards — Volume 114
Amendments to HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that
the application of all New HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$23,099,000 (2023:
HK$56,604,000). Notwithstanding the above, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The management closely monitors the Group’s financial
performance and liquidity position. The validity of the going
concern basis of preparation of these consolidated financial
statements depends upon the success of the Group’s future
operations, its ability to generate adequate cash flows in
order to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due, and its ability to refinance or restructure its borrowings
such that the Group can meet its future working capital and
financing requirements.

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow
projections prepared by the management. The cash flow
projections cover a period of not less than twelve months
from reporting date. Based on the cash flow projections, the
Directors believe that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the coming twelve months from reporting
date. The management has made key assumptions in the
preparation of the projections with regard to the anticipated
cash flows from the Group's operations and capital
expenditures.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

In view of the above, the Directors are of the opinion that
there will be sufficient financial resources available to the
Group to enable it to meet its liabilities as and when they
fall due and to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared these consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

On 17 May 2024, Mr. Tam Kar Wai and Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong
(“Previous Directors”) resigned as Executive Director and
Non-executive Director, respectively. For details, please refer
to Note 10 in the consolidated financial statements.

Following the resignation of the Previous Directors,
the executive directors of the Company (the "Existing
Directors”) were unable to locate certain books, records,
and corresponding supporting documents of certain
subsidiaries, namely, Eternal Grand Developments Limited,
Eternal Grand (Hong Kong) Limited, Wui Fung Limited, Ek
BEEFHREENEEGRAT BEMNMENAEREIE
BERRBE C-EMNMENAEREEERAAFRIKSE D
& (collectively referred to as the “Eternal Grand Group”),
Global Gourmet Catering Services Management Limited,
and Global Gourmet Catering Services Management (H.K.)
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Global Gourmet
Group”) (the “Lost Records”), and certain supporting
documents of the books of account of the Company (the
“Lost Supportings”).

The Eternal Grand Group and Global Gourmet Group's
financial position as at 31 March 2023 are used for preparing
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

The Existing Directors gathered all relevant information by
their best effort to prepare the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

The Existing Directors attempted to contact the Previous
Directors, who were responsible for maintaining proper
books and records for the Group. As of the approval date of
these consolidated financial statements, they were unable
to contact any of the Previous Directors to locate the Lost
Records and Lost Supportings.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no further assessment
is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability
to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and
events within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies
instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities
it has assumed in a business combination. Contingent assets
are not recognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 3.

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
reassessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the
cashgenerating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group
of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

J the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Revenue from restaurant operation is recognised at a point in
time when the catering services are provided to customers.
Receipts in respect of services that have not been rendered
are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities. Upon
confirmation of cancellation received from customers and
expiration of the date of deposits received for the relevant
catering service, the corresponding deposit received is fully
recognised as forfeiture of deposits received.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customers.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature
of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by
the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Sponsorship income from utility companies

Sponsorship income from utility companies is recognised in
other income when there is reasonable assurance that all
attaching conditions are complied with the subsidies received.
Where the subsidies relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income included in trade and other
payables and is released to profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalment.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary difference between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of the
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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ACCOUNTING POLICY INFO
(Continued)

EQAIE
RMATION

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the lease liabilities, and the related
assets separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred tax
liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease components, and instead
accounts for the lease components and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of properties that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.
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ACCOUNTING
(Continued)

POLICY INFORMATION

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other than
adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related
rent concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group'’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of other reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Exchange differences, arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits costs

Payment to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) is recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate
trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred and vested in accordance with the
scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer's contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss represent contributions
paid or payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the schemes.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

Long service payment

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the employer
MPF contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation in terms
of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure on a net basis. The
estimated amount of future benefit is determined after
deducting the negative service cost arising from the accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s MPF contributions that
have been vested with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.

122 welife Technology Limited #7145 ERHS BRAE]

RRNEEREAGHBRER @

EE=F (&)

rEHIES 157

FE AR B A T IR TRER T X (B RREIRE R
SRMERERHERTRES FAAEHER
BRI LER DAL FRIFEMBEBMBREE
AIERFAFFEAGFTABEMSE -

RAIRE =

MERARSEEEMS  A5EREEEE
#ER619.93(a)f W TR RIR IRV B L BT =
HRARIERIFEEHRARF S ERH
oA LR ERE S 8 o RIRBH LS EER
NG AEEERBNESR BB HIRAR
EENRERmNERF A ARETE  ArMH
AR AR E AR R BRI HR



ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes.

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management. Such
overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables, deposit placed for a
life insurance policy and cash and cash equivalents), which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting period as well as the forecast of
future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The Group always recognise lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for credit card trade
receivables and collectively for corporate customers using a
provision matrix with past due status grouping.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the end of
the reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, lease
liabilities and bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value is material).

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their
original condition, as required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to restore the assets, Estimates are regularly
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

Deposit placed for a life insurance policy

Deposit placed for a life insurance policy is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost adjusted
for interest income and service charges, less impairment
losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group'’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligation between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgement, estimates and assumptions about the amounts
of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period and have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

The Group's management assesses impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of
its fair value less cost to disposal and its value-in-use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (Continued)

The calculations require the use of judgements and
estimations, particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the cash-generating
units (“CGU")/assets may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying amount of the CGU/asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, including the estimated
revenue growth rate, operating costs and discount rate
adopted in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the recoverable amount and amount of impairment loss and
as a result affect the Group's financial position and results of
its operations.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are approximately
HK$9,589,000 (2023: HK$16,053,000) and HK$36,567,000
(2023: HK$84,581,000) respectively, after taking into account
the impairment loss that have been recognised respectively.
Details of the impairment are disclosed in notes 16 and 17
respectively.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remained unchanged during both years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes bank borrowings, net of bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Group,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendation of the Directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the issue of new shares,
raising of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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(b)

ategories of financial instruments

2024
202445
HK$'000
FHET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost VAR IE R A ST EN SR E E 133,851 151,217
Financial liabilities Bz =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BB AT ENEREE 103,148 204,187
Financial risk management objective and policies (b) HBEEEEEBFRER

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental
deposits, deposit paid for a life insurance policy, trade
and other receivables, time deposit with maturity over
three months, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

(1)

(i)

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency transactions
settled in United States dollar (“USD"”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”), which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the historical
exchange rate fluctuation on USD is insignificant.
Thus there is no significant exposure expected on
USD transactions and balances. Hence, the Group
does not have any material foreign exchange
exposure.

The Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise. At 31
March 2024 and 2023, the Group assess the
exposure to foreign currency risk is insignificant
to the Group. Accordingly, no sensitivity is
presented.

Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate time deposit with
maturity over three months and lease liabilities.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to its bank balances which carry
prevailing market interest and certain bank
borrowings (see Note 25 for details). The Group
manages its interest rate exposures by assessing
the potential impact arising from any interest
rate movements based on interest rate level and
outlook.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (the “HIBOR") arising
from the Group’s bank borrowings.

The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances is minimal as
these balances have a short maturity period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis to cash flow interest rate
risk below has been determined based on the
exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings to
interest rates at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates has been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's profit/(loss) after tax would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$121,000 (2023:
HK$121,000) for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

6. ERITH®

BHEEAREREBRREBER (B

AR ()
(i) FIEmRE ()
BEUE D

TXHREREFNXEARBRE D
TIRBEARERIRITERNREHR
BIF R (17 € - DT IRBIRER N
BERRKESENERTIAREE
REEMER -AFREEAEBRN
BREMN KRR CRTEEEYH
FERESIEP]SEL BRI LR > IR
EFBE N EE100EER,

i FZ E58, 810018 £ 2 - mFr
BHMEHHREFAE AIAER
REZE2024F3831H IEFE B
MEEN, (B8 SEm, w4
121,000% 75 (20234 © 121,000
JT) ©

FEmEE
MAEBERFHREBTEEMBAR
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RERBGREMBRTKAENERD
BB ENREE
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables mainly represent receivables from
financial institutions in relation to the payment settled
by credit cards of which the settlement is normally
within 3 days from transaction date. The financial
institutions are primarily reputable and creditworthy
financial institutions and have strong financial position.
The management considers the credit risk is low.

In determining the ECL for trade and other receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group's outstanding trade and other receivables
are insignificant. The management of the Group has
assessed that trade and other receivables have not
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and probability of default is low.

For the deposit paid for a life insurance policy, the
credit risks are limited because the counterparty
is financial institution and there was no history of
defaults. ECL is expected to be insignificant.

The Group applies the simplified approach to assess the
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for all trade receivables. Based on historical experience,
majority of the trade receivables were settled within
credit term, hence the expected loss rate of current
trade receivables are assessed to be close to zero. The
loss allowance provision for these balances was not
material as at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

The credit rating of other receivables and deposit paid
for acquisition of subsidiaries was performing. The
Group has considered that these receivables are low
credit risk. Thus, no loss allowance provision under the
12 months expected losses method was recognised
during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.
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6. ETRITH®
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(b) Financial risk management objective and policies

itinued)

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The management of the Group considers time deposit
with maturity over three months and bank balances
are deposited with financial institutions with high
credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The
Directors consider that the probability of default is
negligible on the basis of high credit-rating issuers and
thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from banks to meet their
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
Management believes that there is no significant
liquidity risk as the Group is able to generate net cash
inflow from operating activities and to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirements from
its operation cash flows and available bank financing.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.

(b)

FERE (%)
FEBNEEEIAIMABE=EA
MEHER KRN AR E SRR
BERNRTEFAESERRINERM
BE-EFRRENMXRBEETRHE
TARNEZEBMT RE AL EERE
B

BB LA
FEENHREENERER AN

MEBEERER BREFEMNREHER
BIRTTEGEHAEMBELEE  LURERE
ARRANRBESE R -BEEMEE
AR AEEENEKETHELRER
ABRERUHEERSME K] EIFIR
TREREHRAREESESRHEMMSE
ER U EEARHESAR

#EERDESAR rEBREERER
EEERASENNREERFEEFEBYK
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s financial liabilities and leased liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on current rates
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates:

Weighted
average
interest rate
JIEEBEHES
%

At 31 March 2024 1#2024%3A310

Non-derivative financial liabilities FHrrsmas

Trade and other payables BaRAMENRE -
Bank borrowings R 5.60
Lease liabilities fEsk 3.84
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6. ETRITH®

(b)

BHEREREBRREBER (@

TEETERE (&)
TREMAEARBESHRNEHEE
EAEaEZG TS HER
EHRIBRENE (BEFERAEHFIE
F(EAER) RREARZIRITHES
BRI ELH) MAERBNRZREH
Hio BAEM = » MBS EREBERHNIE
TEARDINARENFEERE > MAEE
IRITEIBITEE R R AT BEME o EfhIEST
EEMaEMNEBHANDURERNERA
BRAHEAE

More than More than

Repayable on yearbut 2 years but Total
demand or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
within 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

RELY BRIE BifE BRREH
MERRE BhiE BRSE Rene KaE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn Tin Fin Tin Thn
29,106 - - 29,106 29,106
14,448 - - 14,448 14,448
43,554 - - 43,554 43,554
49,499 1,253 4,998 61,750 59,504




(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2023 112023%3A318

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEcRaR

Trade and other payables ERRAMENZE =
Bank borrowings RITERD 340
Lease liabilities HEER 490

Bank loan with a repayment on demand clause was
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2024, the principal amount of this bank loan amounted
to HK$14,448,000 (2023: HK$37,382,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors of
the Company did not believe that it is probable that
the bank will exercise its discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that such bank loan will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan
agreement and the principal and interest cash outflows
according to the scheduled repayment date are set out
as follows:

TBEZEEE (B

28212 = = 28212 28212
31382 S S 31382 31382
65,594 = = 65,59 65,59
74931 41726 25,346 148,003 138,593

R EREERRNIBITERGIAL
MEHE ST R ERFGDIEF R
BIEE M- R2024F3H831H  ZiR1TE
R KL EE5A14,448,00058 7T (20234
37,382,000/ 7)) - EEEIAEBBFHE
R KRB ERRARIT A KROTEITE
HEHNBERERIFER AAGEEME
5 BERRTERBREER G EA &
EEERHEEE  RBT2ENHENE
ERFERSRHEIIWT -

At 31 March 2024 12024538318
Bank borrowings FITER 5.60
At 31 March 2023 120233310
Bank borrowings FiCRIE 340

15,021

s s 15,021 14,448

22,463

8,015 8,126 38,604 31382
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(c) Fair value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost at the end of each reporting period
approximate to their corresponding fair values.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

The Group’'s revenue represents amounts received and
receivable from the provision of catering services and sales
of goods, net of discount. Information reported to the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resources allocation
and assessment of performance focuses on the operating
results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources
are integrated and no discrete operating segment financial
information is available. Accordingly, no operating segment
information is presented.

All of the Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The Group’s revenue from external customers and
all of its non-current assets are located in Hong Kong based
on geographical location of assets.

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group's revenue from external customers; and (ii) the Group’s
non-current assets. The geographical location of customers
refers to the location at which the services were provided.
The Group's non-current assets included property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets.

The geographical location of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are based on the physical location of

£MTEHE @

(© AFE
BEEDS NRBEHRBEBNRAEAE
MEMBEERS e &N EEEREE
FEATF(ERE

DERE R
FEENR@EREERRFRFEGERME
Wk FEUR R 88 (H0ERITHN) - MEBRD AR E
RTEAERTRITES BIEBEZERRE)
BRENEREPRNAEENEREEXE
HRAEENERELBES RIEERKEED
EEAFEE R - FIE > WEZFEE D EE Ko

FEBEMBEBIUNEBRTE - NEE K
BNBERNRmcEMBIFRBEEMEE
BB EMS A UREE

UTFROEEEIIBERWA ; Ki)EEEF
MBEENMBUES T - ERHMIEMETD
ERERBHME - AEFIFRBEEREY
E -BERREUREAEEE-

ME- -BERREURCEAREENMIBUE
ERNBEENERMUE-

the asset.
Revenue from Specific
external customers non-current assets
SMERE B IRA BEFERBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
202445 20234 202445 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TFHE7T FHET THETT
Hong Kong &8 421,309 302,136 46,156 100,634
PRC EP - 2,220 - =
421,309 304,356 46,156 100,634

No revenue from individual external customers contributed
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for both years.
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2024

20244
HK$'000
F#ET
Revenue &
Chinese restaurant operations (Note a) RIUEBEE (sta) 419,730 302,872
Sales of food (Note a) BEmifE (fista) 1,579 1,484
421,309 304,356
Other income HgA
Government grants (Note b) BATFE AL (FY5EDb) 454 8,051
Forfeiture of deposits received (Note a) RUB s (sta) 741 4,909
Sponsorship income from utility companies ~ BAERI AT HE B A 1,097 1,136
Exchange gain P& 2 W 2 1 42
Advertising income BEEUWBA 164 -
Sundry income HIBWA 370 506
Imputed interest income on rental deposits A& &I LER BUA 253 369
Interest income from deposit placed for BEASFRERENHEWA
a life insurance policy 533 529
Bank interest income RITH B WA 1,578 615
5,191 16,157
Notes: P 5T
(@)  Revenue derived from Chinese restaurant operations, sales of (@ WA BEBEE -BERHEERRIRBNES
food and forfeiture of deposits received are from contract with EENR@TDRENRE RGN EE R
customers and recognised at a point in time. BLAEST
(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group recognised (b) HEHZE2024F3B31BLEEE AEERTHA
the subsidies of approximately HK$454,000 (2023: HEBFNTHEBNENEES MEHHN
HK$282,000), HK$nil (2023: HK$5,519,000) and HK$nil PNEETSHEES MEIESFIRE
(2023: HK$2,250,000) related to SME Export Marketing Fund, R ZEFE A ST B 948 RE #E Bh A1 49454,0007% 7T
Employment Support Scheme and Catering Business Subsidy (2023%F : 282,000/ 7T) ~ T 7T (20234 ©
Scheme, respectively, provided by the Government of the Hong 5,519,000 7t) K& &7 71 (20234 : 2,250,000
Kong Special Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic BT ©

Fund.
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8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued) 8.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
March 2024 and 2023 and expected timing of recognising
revenue are as follows:

W R EMUWA @
AERERRSHRGBUBHENTEER

20244 %2023F3H31H  HEEE TR B
£ CRBITIHIBDRETT) WRZ B MBS
U A FEERRERS U0 T

Chinese restaurant

operations

hHIREE

2024
20244
HK$'000

2023
20234
HK$'000

FHET THETT

Within one year —FER 73,842 114,660
More than one year but not exceeding BiE—FErBBmE

two years 1,289 691

75,131 115,351

All sales of foods are for a period of one year or less or are
billed based on time incurred. As permitted under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts
is not disclosed.

9. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES, NET 9.

FrERmENHREA—FHNER HRE
LENREE - RIFFAMBREERE15
FRE PEEZFRBTEANZZERIL
RIKEE -

H iy a5 sK 518380

Impairment loss on right-of-use assets

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss on goodwill

Loss on written off on property, plant and
equipment

HERERR

Gain on lease remeasurement HESHE2la
Gain on termination of lease ®IFEEWE
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B R B W
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ERREERERE
ME BB RRFEREBRE

MEEY S ME Rk e 1R

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
= (772)

(320) =

= (14,561)

(560) =
8,669 =

= 4,606

= 13,088

7,789 2,361
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EFREEHMA LTINS

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EFRTHAEAZME
The emoluments of directors and chief executive (“CE") BERERTHAE (TTHRER) NSRS
for each reporting period were as follows: BT

Retirement

Other benefit

benefit scheme
in cash contributions Total

RIKER
HEREN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TAT TAT TAT TAT

Fees Salaries

iz iz EftRZEN

Year ended 31 March 2024

Non-executive directors

Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong (Chairman)
(Notes vii & xii)

Mr. Fok Siu Keung (Note xiii)

Executive directors
Ms. Cheng Man Cheong
(Notes vii and viii)
Mr. Tam Kar Wai (CE)(Notes vii & xii)

Mr. Tan Jian (Note x)

Mr. Chu Pui Him (Note xiv)

Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk (Note xiv)
Mr. Yeung Ka Ho (Notes xiii & xiv)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Leung Chun Kin (Note x)
Mr. Wang Xiang Long (Note x)
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (Note xiii)
Mr. Wong Che Sang (Note xiii)
Mr. Chui Man Lung Everett

(Notes xiii & xiv)
Mr. Wong Tat Keung (Notes vii & xi)
Mr. Wong Wai Ming (Notes vii & ix)
Mr. Tang Tsz Tung (Notes vii & xi)

HE204F3RMBLEE
FanES
WEELE (XR)

(it shviiBaxii)
BB L (ki)

HTES
BRELE (HadviiRuii)

BRERE (THER)
(P viiRexii)
BREE (13x)
Foma s (fzhiv)
REERE (fizhav)
BRELE (i 5hifoiv)

BUFATES
RERRE (Waix)
TR E (Wakx)
BHHLE (Wakii)
BSERE (Wakii)
RS (i Roxiv)

REBREE (Hvithod)
REHAHKE (fviikix)
BrE (Hztikx)

360 - - - 360
120 - - - 120
360 - - - 360
78 - - - 78

52 - - - 52

78 - - - 78
1,048 = = = 1,048
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Year ended 31 March 2023

Non-executive directors

Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong (Chairman)
(Notes vii & xii)

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Shou Ming (Note v)

Ms. Cheng Man Cheong (Notes vii & viii)
Mr. Tam Kar Wai (CE) (Notes vii & xii)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Wong Tat Keung (Notes vii & xi)
Mr. Wong Wai Ming (Notes vii & ix)
Mr. Tang Tsz Tung (Notes vii & xi)

HENFIAINALEE
FHTEE
WEELE (FR)

(Bt Shvii Baxii)

BTES

BREREE (i)

BRELE (i zhviikwii)

ERREE (THER)
(Bt shviiRexi)

BIUFHTES

REBRE (Hvithod)
REAKE (fviikix)
BFEREE (ftvithod)

360

360

360

156

156
156

2,500

360

2,509
360

360

1,548

2,500
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The executive directors’ remuneration shown
above were for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’ remuneration shown above were for
their services as a director of the Group.

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and
2023, no retirement benefits payments or benefits
in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable. No consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ services.

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and
2023, no significant transactions, agreements
and contracts in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted.

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and
2023, there were no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of the directors,
or controlled body corporate and connected
entities of such directors.

Mr. Chan Shou Ming was designated as the
chairman of the board during the year ended 31
March 2021 and ceased to act as the chairman of
board on 27 January 2022. Mr. Chan Shou Ming
rsigned as an executive director of the Company
on 1 October 2022.

No director fees were paid to these executive
directors in their capacity as executive directors
of the Company and no emoluments were
paid by the Company to the executive directors
as an inducement to join the Company, or as
compensation for loss of office during each of the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

10. EFEREEFHMALIME @

(@) EFERITHAHME @

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

EHFRFIATEROFNEARES
FABRRAEEEEEHRENR
HARE c LAPRIIEILIFAITES
BN RN EFRESEREFRM
BY AR 75 7E R o

REZE20245F [22023F3831H Lk
EECBEMKLEIEEREMER
FEFEAEE N IIRBEAERIK
BRHIBNEF ; IMEEARLLE
YRR @ F FRIB S H) o 1B A Rt
EREERBMEE = FREAE
FE= AU RE -

B E2024%F K2023%F3831H LEFE
B AN BT AREREET
BREAAXRRABABINA MARE
EERHEPBEEEAANG (FHmE
BYEE  BFEENAEANEAR
S ERELN

B E2024%F K2023%F3831H LEFE
E BENEEAZSEENZE
FrEMRAEERATZEANSE
FEERREMZ G2

REZE2021F3831HIEFE B
BRECERTAESTSER  BP
2022F 1 B27HAILEEFEEE
[& o PRE SR A HEF2022E 108 1 H B
ERNBHITESE

B E2024%F K2023%F3831H LS
FE > BMEREARRTNAITE
EMAZERNTEEINESE
& ANA BB BT E S S
o EAMARLABRIEEE FIEE
BER 1B o
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Mr. Cheng Man Cheong and Mr. Tam Kar Wai
were appointed as executive director, Mr. Hu
Zhi Xiong was appointed as the non-executive
director and Mr. Wong Tat Keung, Mr. Wong
Wai Ming and Mr. Tang Tsz Tung were appointed
as independent non-executive director of the
Company on 27 January 2022.

Mr. Cheng Man Cheong was resigned as an
executive director on 11 August 2023.

Mr. Wong Wai Ming was resigned as an
independent non-executive director on 14 August
2023.

Mr. Leung Chun Kin and Mr. Wang Xiang Long
were appointed as independent non-executive
director and Mr. Tan Jian was appointed as
executive director of the Company on 14 August
2023 and resigned 25 October 2023.

Mr. Tang Tsz Tung and Mr. Wong Tat Keung were
resigned as an independent non-executive director
on 25 October 2023.

Mr. Hu Zhi Xiong was resigned as an non-
executive director and Mr. Tam Kar Wai was
resigned as an executive director on 17 May
2024.

Mr.Char Shik Ngor Stephen, Mr. Wong Che Sang
and Mr. Chui Man Lung Everett were appointed
as independent non-executive director, Mr. Fok
Siu Keung was appointed as an non-executive
director and Mr.Yeung Ka Ho was appointed as
an executive director of the Company on 22 May
2024.

Mr. Chu Pui Him and Mr. Leung Yin Cheuk were
appointed as executive director, Mr.Yeung Ka
Ho was resigned as an executive director and
Mr. Chui Man Lung Everett was resigned as
an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 29 November 2024.
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10. EFEREEFHMALIME @

(a)

EERIT

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)
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BT o
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EERkEEHMALTME @
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) HHER=HFHMAL
The five highest paid individuals include nil director hEREFMATBESS (20234 | —
(2023: 1) whose remuneration are set out in note %) EE HEM o R &8 KisE@) c ix TR
(a) respectively. Details of the remuneration of the 2 (2023F : UR) LTIERAABEENES
remaining 5 (2023: 4) highest paid individuals, who are N A LR GEIE AT ¢

not directors of the Company, are analysed below:

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e E R EMER 20,872 6,565
Retirement benefits schemes contributions B4R @F 52 135 35
21,007 6,600
The emoluments of the remaining individuals fell within HFEATZMENFUATEHER :

the following bands:

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 2% 1,000,00078 70 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 5% 2,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 552,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000 14,500,001 75% 15,000,000/ 7T 1 -
5 4
During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no B FE2024F ;20233831 HIEFE » &
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors, EESEREE - THRES AL RSH
CE and the five highest paid individuals to join or upon A TZ S (ERRS IR EMBAE
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. ESnia®E 2 SR SURER fE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

11. FINANCE COSTS

11. MR

Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on bank borrowings

HE&EMNE
IRITIERF 2

Unwinding of discounting on provision for — {&18 a7 # # BR IR #5[0] (f5£26)

reinstatement costs (Note 26)

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
5,436 6,203
1,297 1,274
44 26
6,777 7,503

12. FRIGMRAX

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET

Current income tax — Hong Kong:

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. For the year of
assessments 2022/23 and 2023/24, a two-tiered profits tax
rates was introduced of which one subsidiary of the Group
can elect 8.25% tax rate for its first assessable profits of

HK$2,000,000.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax

rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
the year ended 31 March 2023 as the Group has sufficient
tax losses brought forward available to offset the estimated

assessable profits for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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BIHAFR1SI —& & !
Current year provision REERE

300 =

EBMNERDEMEEENGTERRERN
16.5% 5t 5 © 1R2022/23F [ 2023/24F B E
EoSIAFBSRMmKSG > KEBN—BHEB
NE A EHERRR EF) 52,000,000 o=
8.25%HIFR X o

REFRSEENABERRES (RBERR
BB NRAKRR ~EBBAEREES
KRB R R B SR ERIPER

RIEPEEEMAFRE (EERFRZE) R
FFERZBRIFA PEMBARNRES
25%-°

HRAEBZ ZAFIREGEEZUIRHEEEE
2023F3831HIEFEZ BRG] » )
NEBIRFEE2023FE3831HLEEEZF
B ERTIREE



Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of

16.5%
Income tax at concessionary rate

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax

purpose

Utilisation of tax losses not recognised
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries

operating in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences

not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax reduction

Income tax expenses for the year

e income tax expenses can be reconciled to the profit/(loss)
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follow:

BRIRATET (B8

BRAMPIEIRIREI16 5%t H 2
MIA
REBMEXABEZAER
StERARENEIRZ

A MBER &
SAERAERTERR 2
WARBF &

B AR IER R
REMENEZRESENNBEAS
MEFRNF &

RSB NAEREREZ
MBERE
REDRNBEBRZRBTE
IR %

FRAEHRAEX

BISRATRA S (B518) AT |

20245

HK$'000

FHET
29,145 (6,940)
4,809 (1,145)
(165) -
11,734 3,475
(13,819) (4,518)
(3,289) (3,110)
- (68)
(452) 251
1,485 5,115
(3) =
300 =
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

13. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13. EREFH 7 (E518)
Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging/ FEWEA (B18) B GtA) T2IEIE
(crediting):
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Directors’ remuneration E==F i 1,048 4,057
Other staff costs (excluding HMBE T &
Directors'remuneration): (FEEESHH) :
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e 2 REMER 142,348 105,595
(Reversal of)/provision of long service payment £HIARFE & (HL]) #HE (23) 5
Provision of unutilised annual leave KEBFRER 119 935
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BIREF ST RR 3,122 2,826
145,566 109,361
Total staff costs mE TR 146,614 113,418
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-191BRATE R % — (4,620)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREBEITE 45,137 47,915
Depreciation of property, plant ME - -BERREITE
and equipment 7,808 8,902
Cost of inventories consumed HIEFEERM K 102,207 77,331
Donations E=E N 468 1,160
Auditors’ remuneration % 25 B i B 1,220 1,400
Premium and handling charges on a life AERENRERFEE
insurance policy 298 282
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15.

ININI= 220 &

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Company during ; H
the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, nor has any FERNMNKERIRGRE > BRSHARETE
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting BEIRTEARE

period.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 15. SREF (FH)

The calculation of earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the NABEE NEEERER], (B18) Th iR
owners of the Company is based on the following data: TEIREE

2024
20245

HK$’000
FTAET

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners Z~A B A A B ER T,

of the Company (#518) 28,845 (6,940)
‘000 ‘000
F A% F B

Weighted average number of ordinary shares &RREARZEF] (E5i8) B
for the purpose of basic earnings/(loss) per XL EIRE S

share 1,150,000 1,150,000
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic FH 5 R (B FF 0 (T ) 5 TR SN B T
earnings/(loss) per share as there were no dilutive potential BRERMD HEREBERA (BB BERE

ordinary shares outstanding during both years. A&F, (E518) 18R




Cost

At 1 April 2022

Additions

Disposal

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Write-offs

At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023

Additions
Write-offs

At 31 March 2024

Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2022

Charge for the year

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Elimination on disposal
Elimination on write-offs

At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023

Charge for the year
Impairment loss
Elimination on write-offs

At 31 March 2024

Carrying value
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

s
12022548 1H
HE

HE
WEEN B AT

12023538318 K
2023F481H

HE

s

1202438318

WERRE
1202254818
ERNG
W B AR
HE R
2 B

R2023F38318 K
20234810

FRNk

BUERE

12024F3H831H

IREE
1202438318

120235383180

86,288 80,371 923 167,582
1,369 1,105 1,129 3,603
= = (146) (146)

= 87 = 87
(14,488) (12,562) = (27,050)
73,169 69,001 1,906 144,076
430 1,794 = 2,224
(5.379) (7.124) = (12,503)
68,220 63,671 1,906 133,797
73,780 71,601 849 146,230
4,969 3,604 329 8,902
= 87 = 87

= = (146) (146)
(14,488) (12,562) = (27,050)
64,261 62,730 1,032 128,023
4,330 3,138 340 7,808
230 90 = 320
(5,303) (6,640) = (11,943)
63,518 59,318 1,372 124,208
4,702 4,353 534 9,589
8,908 6,271 874 16,053




16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates or
useful lives per annum:

Over the shorter of the terms
of the lease or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 30%

Due to the poor financial performance of certain restaurants,
the management concluded there was indication for
impairment and conducted impairment assessment. An
impairment loss of approximately HK$772,000 for certain
right-of-use assets were recognised during the year ended 31
March 2023, which was estimated based on the recoverable
amount of each individual restaurant’s cash generating unit.

The management reviewed the recoverable amount of the
restaurants with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to
the Group. The recoverable amounts of each restaurant CGU
are determined based on the value-in-use calculation which
uses cash flow projections covering a 5-year period based
upon continued use of the assets approved by the Directors
and a pre-tax discount rate range from 14.88% to 16.46%
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

For a restaurant with poor financial performance, the
Group determined recoverable amount based on fair value
less disposal cost and recognised an impairment loss of
HK$320,000 on property, plant and equipment respectively
for the year ended 31 March 2024.

LEASES
(i) Right-of-use assets

16.

17.

ME - -BERSRE ®

R E - -BERREDUBGERUATEE
SR fE BRI ES ¢

fAEsE RIEEATSE
BRIEE

RENBEERRE 20%

RE 30%

ERNETERNUBREXE EEERAR
ERE R BEITRE G IREE20235F3
B3HEFEMRETEAREERDAERIE
772,000 70 IR B ERBEENREELE R
BRI YR Bl 2 5t

CEEBKSEAAEEERENBILIEGE
HEGEMETHNGE FEBEZMNTTREIS
B R BBREEFSBUMNTINEISIERES
REGBE REERHENTEFTREEE
BRERAFHNRSRSTAAKREE202343
B31HEFENRFRRAMIRENF14.88%E
16.46%MEE TE °

MBI ERIBAEANEEMS » AEERA
FEREAHERAE T EEE  WREE
2024F3831HIEFEARADRIMIE -BEK&
5 HESE320,00078 TTHYBLE K18 -

Leased restaurants HEEEZ
Warehouses BE
Office premises MAEYE

HE
(i) FEREEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEBT
36,153 82,936
191 1,422
223 223
36,567 84,581
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024F3831HIEE

17. LEASES (Continued)

(i) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group has lease arrangements for leased
restaurants, warehouses and office premises. The lease
terms generally ranged from one to seven years (2023:
one to seven years).

Extension options are included in certain leases of
restaurants. Certain periods covered by extension
options were included in these lease terms as the Group
was reasonably certain to exercise the option.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, additions/
modifications to the right-of-use assets including
capitalised lease payments, present value adjustment
of refundable rental deposit, acquisition of subsidiaries
and provision for reinstatement costs amounted to
approximately HK$5,072,000 (2023: HK$3,979,000),
due to new/renewal of leases of restaurants, warehouse
and office premises.

Details of the impairment assessment are disclosed in
note 16.

Lease liabilities

(i)

Lease liabilities payable:

0}

(i)

17. THE ®

FREEE (@&

AEEEHREAE BEERBAZEY
ENHEZH -FESH—BNF—ZEZtE
(2023%FF : —F ) o

ETEBHEETEIEREEE ANE
EECEBEETEZERR FULRERE
BRENETHEEMAZEEER-

BE2024F3831HIEEE  AREET
EEEE AEMRIAEYENTEL
RE/EREAREE (BEEACHE
IR mEOHESRE 2 BEAE WS
M B A B KB 18 B A B E) 4975,072,000
HIT (20234 3,979,000 7T) ©

BB EN G EIRER 160

HERRE
HESRENMRIEA:

— &y

Within one year

After one year but not exceeding two years —FE L _F - BRBEHE
After two years but not exceeding five years M L > BFRBBRE

After five years tBiE &

Less: Amount due for settlement within
12 months shown under current liabilities

EEENRIE

Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 B & 45 E 89 FE 718

The weighted average incremental borrowings rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 2.75% to 7.09%
(2023: 2.51% t0 9.10%).
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B ERBEEEY12EAR

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHBT
47,623 69,688
7,039 45,171
4,932 23,734
59,594 138,593
(47,623) (69,688)
11,971 68,905

FE B 2| B & ER N IR I8 SRR
RANF2.75%E7.09% (20234F 1 2.51%
£9.10%) °



(iv)

ounts recognised in profit or loss

2024
20245
HK$'000

FERT

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets & S ERITER X

— Leased restaurants —HHEEEZ

— Warehouses —BE

— Motor vehicle —"E

— Office premises —MAEYE
Expense relating to short-term leases EHHERS

Expense relating to contingent rent not
included in the measurement of the lease
liabilities (included in property rentals and  #8RE5I2)
related expenses)

The leases of restaurants contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on sales generated from
the relevant restaurants and minimum annual lease
payment terms that are fixed. These payment terms are
common in restaurants in Hong Kong where the Group
operates.

Others

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the total
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately
HK$73,273,000 (2023: HK$56,228,000). The amount
includes payments of principal and interest portion of
lease liabilities, variable lease payments and short-term
leases. These amounts could be presented in operating
and financing cash flows.

Rt AREERFENT
REHZ GIAMERER

43,906 45,879
1,231 1,215
= 52

= 769
45,137 47,915
989 601
595 1,700

BRANHAREARAEPMELNHERE
ENFBHENRERKEENRBFERES
ARIFER e ZEMNRIFREE S (FEELEE
BRRTEM) BB RN IR

(iv) Hth
BE2024F 1283 HIEFE - HENIRE
R AREEZ 473,273,00058 7T (20234
56,228,000 7T) - Z+EEEHEAR
HAERFH EHD TR JE2HENR K
EHEE ZEEHEINKERMERS

MEBHRET]
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18. GOODWILL 18. BHE
HK$'000
FAET
Cost 9%
At 1 April 2022 2022548 1H =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) W kB B A B (FyzE35) 14,561
At 31 March 2023, 1April 2023 and 31 March 2024  722023%3831H 2023F481H K
2024F3H31H 14,561
Accumulated impairment HitiRE
At 1 April 2022 202284818 -
Impairment loss B 14,561
At 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 73202343831 H~2023F48 180 &
20249F3H31H 14,561

Carrying value IREE
122024538318 -

At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

The goodwill of approximately HK$14,561,000 was
generated from acquisition of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 March 2023. Wui Fung (note 35) was viewed as
one CGU. The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculation, which is based on
discounted cash flow sourced from the financial budgets
approved by the management covering a 5-year period based
upon continued use of the assets.

The following table set out the key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculation:

g —_—

REE2023F3831HLEEE  WERBAG
EEHEELNA14,561,0005 00 Flg (MEE
35) WIRARSESAEMN - REEL B U
WElEELIRBEEREESEET  BENK
BiFETRZSEER S EBE O ENSER
PMHEE RS RE

TR EEREEMRZRARRKRR

Assumption
used
Ffr BB (B 5%

Items EH
Terminal growth rate REBRER 3%
Pre-tax discount rate ARG IR = 16.46%

The terminal growth rates used is in line with the long term
inflation rate forecast in PRC. The discount rate reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
specific risks relating to the CGU. Other assumptions included
budgeted income estimated based on the past performance
and management’s expectations of market developments.

The management confirmed that the ongoing impact
of COVID-19 has led to the poor performance of PRC
restaurants, causing goodwill to be fully impaired.
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

19. DEPOSIT PLACED FOR A LIFE INSURANCE

POLICY

In January 2016, the Group entered into a life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure Mr. Chan, a
director of the subsidiaries. Under the policy, the Group is
the beneficiary and policy holder and the total insured sum
is USD4,000,000 (approximately HK$31,200,000). The Group
has paid an upfront deposit of USD 1,906,502 (approximately
HK$14,855,000). The Group can terminate the policy at any
time and receive cash back based on the cash value of the
policy at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
upfront deposit payment of USD1,906,502 plus accumulated
interest earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge
and policy expense charge (“Cash Value”).

In addition, if withdrawal is made between the first to
nineteenth policy year, there is a specified amount of
surrender charge.

The insurance company will pay the Group an interest of
4% per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the policy
for the first year. Commencing in the second year, the
interest will be at least 2% guarantee interest per annum.
The guarantee interest rate is also the effective interest rate
for the deposit placed on initial recognition, determined by
discounting the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the insurance policy, excluding the financial
effect of surrender charge.

The Directors considered that the possibility of terminating
the policy during the 1st to 19th policy year was low and the
expected life of the life insurance policy remained unchanged
since the initial recognition, accordingly, the difference
between the carrying amount of deposit placed for a life
insurance policy as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 and the Cash
Value of the life insurance policy is insignificant.

The deposit placed for a life insurance policy is denominated
in USD, a currency other than the functional currency of the
Group.

At 31 March 2024 and 2023, the life insurance policy has
been pledged as security for banking facilities granted to the
Group.

19.

BRIBASRERE

R2016F1 B » AREBE R —BREATTILA
ERE > UAWNBATESTRIAERR R
RE AEEBASZEARRERFBEA M=
fRAB%8734,000,0003% 75 (4931,200,0007%8
70) o AREEBEZ(TTETZ£1,906,5023% 7T (49
14,855,000787T) ° AEE AT MERAR ILRERE
RIENHBPNRERSEEKREIIRE  BRAR
SRFEIZETFN1,906,502E oM R AR
HFREBRFAREERAMRERIWEETE
(MREEE) -

HESh » 5 S =1 9E (R B AR B R BRUR A%
EZENREFTESE-

REBARRBNREEEFEMRENREEE
A A B 2 T FEFE4%F S - B8 Fie
HERB/RDEERENB2%  REFRIFSD
PR D HEBRF R R B R ThRRE
R FHANEE RRR S WRMEIRMEE
ETHRERRTFEENMHEE -

BEERA PRI E1EREBEFERILFRENT
BEM R BEASRENTEREHE S ERIE
HEAE S AL B ASREBREN202445F
F2023F3A3 HNREBERASRENRE
BEZENEBETAE ALK

RBASREREUETHE TRt EH

HEE S LUISM G

1R2024F K%2023F3831H ASREEKIF
ARFAEBIRITRE ZIKFR
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20. B 5 KREtEWRIAE

2024 2023
2024% 2023£F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TFATT
Current BN HA
Trade receivables B 5 e RIE 2,602 893
Prepayments SEENE O 2,626 2,384
Rental deposits (Note) it A (D) 29,299 30,518
Utility and other deposits NAZEREMZS 4,971 5,828
Other receivables H g 2,276 2,003
41,774 41,626
Less: Non-current portion W JERNERER
— Rental deposits (Note) —HEmse () 17,133 25,473
24,641 16,153
Note: st :
Detailed movement of rental deposits during the years are as 2L SN ERNEBFBUT ¢
follows:
2024 2023
2024% 2023£F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TFAT
At 1 April R4B1H 30,518 32,397
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB E A T - 242
Exchange alignment ERAE (18) =
Refund R[] (1,454) (2,490)
Imputed interest income ZEFEWA 253 369
At 31 March 38318 29,299 30,518
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21.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above

balances.

The Group's sales are mainly conducted in cash or by credit AEENHEFEURETHERFET G
cards of which the settlement period is normally within 3 BH—RARZ BAESBHA - AEERHE AT
days from transaction date. The credit period granted by the EREENEEHRNF0E3I0H

Group to its corporate customers ranges from 0 to 30 days.

The following is an ageing analysis of the trade receivables T ARRESARBRIEZEZLE AR K E
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates MR HEREE) 25 B 5 ENFUERE: DT o

the respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period.

2024
20245
HK$'000
FAET
Within 30 days 30HA 2,602 893
No loss allowance of trade receivables was recognised as at R2024F %2023FE3831H MERRE ZE
31 March 2024 and 2023. WRIA RSB B o
DEFERRED TAX 21. RIEFRIA
The analysis of deferred tax is as follows: IRERIBR AT

Deferred tax assets IR IEE B - =
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

21. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the both years:

21. RIEMRIA @

UFnrzmEFERRSNEREEREEE
/(BE) REEFHER :

Decelerated Accelerated

At 1 April 2022 120224818
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (BEzmR) st ABR

At 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023
and 31 March 2024

2023E3H318
2023481 K
2024%3H31H

Deferred tax assets are recognised for available tax losses
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
March 2024, the Group had tax losses of approximately
HK$167,479,000 (2023: HK$175,136,000) and other
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$28,545,000 (2023: HK$24,719,000). Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$1,489,000 (2023: HK$1,489,000) with expiry dates as
disclosed in the following table. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

tax tax
Tax losses depreciation depreciation Total
IR IE IERIE
MIARIE e e Hazt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHT FHTT FHTT
74 - (74) -
(74) - 74 -

ZE2ENIBEEARNREBENGRIUEZEE
RRERM AN ERT EERNBEESSH
R 12202438310 AEBEMRIEEE X
Hah a0 R EXE D 52 49167,479,00078 7T
(20234 : 175,136,0003 70) K 4928,545,000
HIT (20234 © 24,719,000 70) o RFERIR
BB E R A5 18491,489,00058 7 (20234 ¢
1,489,000787T) » FIEA B FRIFE - HthE51E
AR ARG B o

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

2028 20284

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not recognise
deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$167,479,000 (2023: HK$175,136,000) and deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$28,545,000
(2023: HK$24,719,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit stream.
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1,489 1,489

R2024%F 38310 AEE W EMRIESER
BIR E BF ERE D BI49167,479,0005 7T (2023
& 1 175,136,00078 70) K #928,545,00048 7T
(20234 : 24,719,000 70) MRIELERIBE
E EEEE/\\*X@E%‘J/)IL /2%5 HlJ
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22. INVENTORIES 22. 6
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFHETT
Food Bm 1,040 1,423
23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH/TIME 23. RITHEERRIAE FIHREA=E
DEPOSIT WITH MATURITY OVER THREE ARERRTFR
MONTHS
Bank balances carry floating interest rate based on daily bank 1220245 5202338310 » IRITAFIEER
deposit rates as at 31 March 2024 and 2023. IRITER BN ENFEFZEGTE
Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2024, P2024F3A31HNRERREZFEY S
there has an amount denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") BE—Z2MUARE TARYE) StHENRIES
of approximately RMB103,000 (equivalent to approximately A AR®103,0007T (FHEH49111,0008
HK$111,000) (2023: approximately RMB103,000 (equivalent 70) (20234 : A9 AK¥E103,0007T (FBE R
to approximately HK$127,000)). Remittance of RMB out of 127,000 70)) o AR ISHE H /A= P =B
the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the Bz INEETIFRR

PRC government.

Time deposit over three months carry interest at 4.15% HBB=EANEHRERIZEFZEL15% (2023
(2023: Nil) per annum. FE B R
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 24. B REMEMNRBERENER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(a) Trade the other payables (a) BIZREMENMNTIE
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Trade payables B ENRIA 6,666 7,427
Accruals (Note a) FEst & A (sta) 21,341 20,537
Deferred income RIEU A 1,780 2,102
Amount due to a director EN—%EEZRIE 1,099 248
Provision for litigations (Note b) FREAEE (sEb) 13,804 =
Provision for long service payment REARFB B 9 31
Provision for unutilised annual leave KB FEBRER 1,471 1,455
46,170 31,800
Less: Non-current portion WL JERDERER
— Deferred income —IRIEUT A 878 1,198
45,292 30,602
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 24. BEREMEMTIERENEE®

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a) Trade the other payables (Continued) (a) HBEZREMEMNTIE (@)

Notes: PEEE -

(@) Included in the balance as at 31 March 2024, there was (@) 2024383 1HM&E T » BB
approximately HK$2,338,000 (2023: HK$1,290,000) # =M F 492,338,000 7T (20234 :
remuneration payable to the Directors. 1,290,000/ 7T) ©
Included in the balance as at 31 March 2024, there MR2024F3831HWNAERF > 15
was approximately HK$784,000 (2023: HK$2,154,000) FEtTH£49784,00078 75 (20234 :
accrued rent. 2,154,000 7T) °

(b)  Details of provision for litigations refer to Note 37. (b) BRAFABEEHNFFRESEMNE37

Payment terms granted by suppliers are generally within HFE R 12 H B AU — AR S 1 AR R IR

50 days from the relevant purchases are made. The FEBS0RM - REEFRE WA R EIRIR

Group has financial risk management policies in place £ UERMBEMRIEREERRAE

to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit NE

time-frame.

Amount due to a director is unsecured, repayable on BN —R%ES2HEARER BREXRE

demand and interest-free. BRRE-

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables UTARBRESHARZEZHHEINE

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the S P FRIERRER D477

reporting period:

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TAT

Within 30 days 308/ 6,666 7.427
(b) Contract liabilities (b) SH&EE

2023

20234

HK$'000

TET

Banquet services EERH 18,064 30,529

Cash coupons REH 699 1,071

18,763 31,600

Less: Non-current portion L FERNEAER 3 133 140

18,630 31,460

As at 1 April 2022, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$36,418,000.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (Continued)
Deposits received from customers for banquet
services

The payment terms are by installments stipulated in the
banquet contracts. The deposits are non-refundable.

Cash coupon

The Group issued the face value of cash coupon and
the cash coupon are non-refundable and is expired
within 12 months (2023: 12 months).

The following table sets out the revenue and other
income recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year:

24. BEREMEMRIERSNEE®

(b) BAHEMRE @
BEF A ECIREIKREE

ARERBETENTEEND BN
AR REBTEIRMe

B H
FEFBETRSAFEE Be5E500
BAER12MEH A (20234F : 12{ER) #

EZRH
REFH

Banquet services
Cash coupon

25. BANK BORROWINGS

Carrying amounts repayable contain a repayment on demand
clause (based on schedule repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements) shown under current liabilities:

HH o
TREVSAARENNEHNEBEHFD
B R SR M R Ry B -
2023
20244 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
26,065 32,015
1,071 964
27,136 32,979

25. tRITBK
EREEESSRERBEER BERHES
=Y V=R Ib L N=E:
)

2023
20234
HK$’000
TE7T

Within one year —FRN
After one year but not exceeding two years

After two years but not exceeding five years

—FEMN L BRBEME =
WMENE BRBERF =

21,800
7,605
7,977

37,382
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Interest rate =
— Floating rate —EEA=E
— Fixed rate —EEF =

As at 31 March 2024, the bank borrowing carried floating
interest rate of 1 month HIBOR plus 1% per annum (2023:
1 month HIBOR plus 1% per annum) and other bank
borrowings carried fixed rate of nil% (2023: 2.75%). The
effective interest rate on the bank borrowings is 5.60%
(2023: 3.40%) per annum during the year ended 31 March
2024.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the bank borrowings
and credit facilities available to the business cards are
secured by the Group's deposit placed for a life insurance
policy amounting to approximately HK$16,414,000 (2023:
HK$16,178,000) and guaranteed by a Director of the
subsidiaries.

2024
20245
HK$'000
F#ET
14,448 14,448
= 22,934
14,448 37,382

202438310 RITERZ1E B EHBRT
FZERFEMER1% (20234F : AR B HIRTT
FEFEMER1%) BIHARAE » HhiR
TEHBIREEF E0% (20234 : 2.75%) 5t
B o R#EE2024F3831H IEEE » $RITMERA
BIEEFEA5.60% (20234 © 3.40%) ©

R2024F %2023F3831H » sRITHER R EE
RO NG EENERAEENKBASRER
E4916,414,00058 0K #0 (20234 16,178,000
BT R B AT — SR EE R




2024

20244
HK$'000

FAET
At 1 April ®481H 4,556 5,830
Reversal £ (1,645) (904)
Addition NE 991 -
Unwinding of discount (Note 11) BhIR B[] (fF5E11) 44 26
Payment for reinstatement costs BB A= (391) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT - (396)
At 31 March R3B831H 3,555 4,556
Current portion BOERER 7> 776 985
Non-current portion JEBNERER 2,779 3,571
At 31 March R3B831H 3,555 4,556
Provision for reinstatement costs is recognised at the net BERABEERIAEEREESECANEE
present value of costs to be incurred for the reinstatement MZEBE R EE AR BRERNE R FEIR
of the leased property used by the Group for its operations BREST -
upon expiration of the relevant lease.

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. ig#&

Details of authorised and issued share capital of the RABEERBETRAZFBOT !

Company are as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EiERER0.01ETT
Authorised: EE
As at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, 2022948 1H~2023F3H31H ~
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 202348 1H %2024F3831H 5,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREBEHRE :
As at 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, 720224818~ 2023438318

1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 2023F481H %2024F3831H 1,150,000 11,500
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28. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group
has entered the following non-cash transactions:

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group had
non-cash additions/modifications to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of approximately HK$5,072,000
(2023: HK$3,979,000) and HK$4,081,000 (2023:
HK$4,450,000) respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for leased restaurants. The modification
of right-of-use assets included HK$991,000 (2023:
HK$471,000) adjustment on provision for reinstatement
costs.

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
had non-cash remeasurements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of approximately HK$7,949,000
and HK$16,618,000 respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for leased restaurants.

(c)  During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
terminated the lease for restaurants and warehouse
and derecognised right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of approximately HK$Nil and HK$4,173,000
respectively. As such, provision of reinstatement costs of
approximately HK$433,000 was reversed.

(d) During the year ended 31 March 2024, an utility
company provided a cash incentive of HK$150,000
(2023: HK$100,000) and property, plant and equipment
with a total value of approximately HK$625,000
(2023: HK$1,007,000) to the Group. The Group has
recognised the amount as deferred income (included in
other payables) upon receipt of such incentive.
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28. FEIFRERS

B E2024F K2023FE3831HIEEE  KEH
BETUTIERERS :

(a)

B E2024F3831HIEEE  XEER
HEAEENHEHEZHNERESAE
BHERAEEEREEGAES AL
5,072,000 7% (20234 : 3,979,000
70) K4,081,0007 7T (20234 : 4,450,000
BT) o B AEE ESIE991,000E T
(20234 : 471,000 70) BIE1E Al 2=
BREE -

HE2024F3831HILEE  AEBERE
EEENHEZHNIERESEMTE2M
AREERBESED R A%7,949,000
BT 16,618,000 7T ©

B E2023FE3831HIEEE  AEEE
RIEFAERBEREE R IEHERDER
BEERHEERDNANEETK
4,173,00078 7T © AL » B 8 BB 18 Bl 2
#49433,0003 7T ©

HE2024F3831HEEE  —RAHR
A B M A E RIS EEN150,0008
70 (20234 : 100,000 7T) K4EABEELYN
625,000/ 7t (20234 : 1,007,0007870) B9
ME-BE MR NEBRWEZE R
BIEERZESEARIEWA GTAHM
FETZRIB) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 29. FEME ZSNEEHIR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREFIAEEREMBETHNEEES &
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- ERERIFRESEF REMEFTENEES
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are BEREERHTARREREFNESHERN
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, ERANDEAMETEMERERENEE-

classified in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

Non-cash changes
FREEH
Finance
1 April Financing cost Lease Lease Exchange 31 March
023 cash flows incurred modification  remeasurement alignment Others 204
WBEAIR  BERERE BELHEHD figkn  HEENHE EfRE Bf  2043R318
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tin Tin Fin TR i TR Tin TR
Bank borrowings MR 3138 (22,934) - - - - - 14,448
Interest payable RIS - (1,297) 1297 - - - - -
Lease liabilties GEEE 138,593 (71,689) 5,436 4,081 (16,618) o (200) 59,59
175975 (95,920) 6733 4,081 (16,618) ) (200) 14,042
Non-cash changes
Fhess
Lease
Finance fiabiities ~ COVID-19- Acquisition
1 April Financing cost settle by related rent lease  Termination of Accrued — Disposal of 31 March
2022 cash flows incurred coupons  concession  modification of lease  subsidiaries rental  subsidiaries 023
NBEH  COVD-19
plip:3 BE EELWE @ EEN  AEER it HE  WBE
4HIH RERE . A% HEEY RULRE  WEAE  RaEE  WERY A3
‘000 HK$'000 000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$000  HKS$'000
TEn Tin Tén TEn TEn TEn
Bank borrowings FighE 44,448 (7,066) - - - - - - - 37,38
Interest payable EfRIS - (1,274) 1274 = = = e - - - -
Lease liabilities fiEak 212,834 (53,927) 6,203 (200) 4,620 4450 (4173) 1 {2,154 (20,59) 138,593
251,082 62,267) TATI (200) 4,620) 4,450 (4.173) 7712 {2,154) (20,592) 175975
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 30. BAREF 2

The Group contributes to a Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF"”) scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The scheme is a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee
and is available to all employees. The MPF is funded by
payments from employees and by the Company, and provide
benefits linked to contributions and investment returns on
the scheme. Contributions to the scheme are recognised as
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year to which the
contributions relate.

The employees employed in the subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of the state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2024 of approximately HK$3,122,000
(2023: HK$2,835,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plan.

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under the MPF Scheme utilised
to reduce the existing levels of contributions. As at 31 March
2024 and 2023, there was no forfeited contribution under
the MPF Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.
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A BIR R E B R G ATRE 5 BMF G 252 5
MRS (MEEE)) StEIHM - ZFE R
AEILXSEABENERMBNE FTERE
He] 2 -l NESERBREZTRER
) I B (B (R R = 5t B IR B [0l 3Rk A RA BRI A
m o TRV EHMR HRAER FENG S B
REMEEW@mRTPEDBFE -

B AR B A% IZ B I BB A Bl B AR BY B & 7% B R B R
FEFNERERER KGN EIFINE - PE
MEB AR RZKNENITERNES T ARG
FMEBIHR BEREMNREES - LB KB
Met8mE > ~EENE-—SELARBEE/M
B EH PR Bt

BE2024F3831HIEFE T EmmERHN
#F932493,122,000%8 7T (20234 : 2,835,000
7o) IE AR EEEZ L ERAF] B L E R 5
ZIET AV RN o

REE2024F K%2023F3831HIEFEE » AE
B miR iR RS 58 ARV IRE HRUKFE
B2 WAL RR 0 7R20244F K2023F3831H » i
RiFEBESHE AEAERBAR B RREE
FEASE RN A2 WU RR 0



Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into transaction with related
parties as follows:

(@) Transactions with related parties

BRiR S

MHRESAREE I > 45 H L[

FEIMLATRS

(a) HMEFHRS

Able Cheer Development Limited Lease payment

HIRERBRAD HEM®
Car-parking spaces rental

payment

BUEEMNN

Art Ocean Limited (“Art Ocean”) Lease payment

WERRAR (TH#E) HEM®

Eagle Way Development Limited Lease payment

("Eagle Way")

HRERBRAR (MEE) HEM®

Mr. Chan'’s son Salaries

FRATERRETF e

Mr. Chan’s wife Salaries

RAEENET e

Notes:

(i) The rent was charged at terms mutually agreed by
the parties in respect of lease of restaurant accounted
for right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the year
ended 31 March 2023. During the year ended 31 March
2023, lease payment made to Able Cheer amounted to
approximately HK$3,900,000.

(i) The rent was charged at terms mutually agreed by the
parties in respect of lease of a warehouse.

(iii)  Salaries were charged according to the terms entered
into between the parties.

(iv)  The rent was charged at terms mutually agreed by the
parties in respect of lease of a warehouse.

On 24 December 2021, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Eagle Way covering the lease period
from 1 January 2023 to 30 June 2024.

(v)  The rent was charged at terms mutually agreed by the
parties in respect of lease of a carpark. On 30 June
2022, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Able Cheer covering the lease period from 1 July 2022
to 30 June 2023 and accounted for short-term lease.

MysE

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

2024
20244
HK$’000
FHET

= 3,900

= 23

= 240

= 240

= 600

= 879

= 315

HZE2023F383 18 LEEE BT
HEHBENMPRBEHAERRAR
AFERREEAEEEE PNEZE2023
FIFIBLEEE AR RIELHNHEE
{1 FX49753,900,00058 7T ©

BERINESTHBENBRAEERE
AR UTER ©

FEDRBSIAOR 2 BT I MR
By o

BERINESTHBENBERAEERE
AR UTER ©

R20215F 128248 > ZE B HBIFE T
U MAE R AHH2023F181HERE
20245%6H830H Lk

MeERITNErMBEE—BABMUR
EBERULEY © 7220224668308 » A&
EHEBIRT LA SRS HEEAB2022
F7R1HEZE2023F6830H 1> A
IRAMEEAE -
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

Certain directors and their close family member of
the Company are the registered owner of restaurant
licenses and liquor licenses which are provided to the
Group at nil consideration during both years.

The Group entered into several tenancy agreements
with related companies which a director of the
Company is their beneficial shareholder and director,
for leasing of properties as restaurant, warehouse and
carpark.

The above related companies are companies of which a
director of the Company is their beneficial shareholder
and director, the relationship ceased on 1 October
2022.

Compensation of key management personnel

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, the
remuneration of the Directors and other members of
key management are as follows:

31. AR S @

(a)

(b)

SR A RS (@)

KRB ETEERERERENEAR
RMRER 2 ERFA A ARAEERR
mEFEEZTAERHETAER-

FEREBBAD ERED—RLEEHHE
BEaRRKRESR STUZHEERZE U
HBYIEREE BERAE -

LTHREABMABDR/ TR —REEA/HESE

TR REBENAE  ZEFRBEN20224F
108 1H#& ke
TEEIE A S

REE2024F K2023F3831HIEFE

FEHAER
i3 A gl

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
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EEATEEEBHMBENFHNOT
2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHBT

1,048 4,575

= 27

1,048 4,602




Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 NS 2
March 2024 and 2023 are as follows: B AT RI T -

31 March
2024
2024%3A31H
Directly held subsidiary
ERFENRBAT
Wonderful Brocade Limited ~ BVI 9 November 2017 Usb100 100%
PEERAT HEEARHE 2017£1189R 100£7
Indirectly held subsidiaries:
REEENBAR
All perfect Limited Hong Kong 19 December 2014 HK$1,000,000 100%
EXERAT S 20145128190 1,000,000 7%
As Great (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 10 January 2019 HK$1 100%
Limited
ME (EE) BRAF S 201918108 187
Barry Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong 27 November 2015 HK$1,000,000 100%
(Note 2)
BAORERERAR (f3k2) &% 2015811827H 1,000,000 7%
Better Winner Limited Hong Kong 16 December 2011 HK$1,000,000 100%
HIBERAT S 2011E12816H 1,000,000 7%
Earn Billion Limited Hong Kong 10 March 2017 HK$1,000,000 100%
EEERAT S 201738108 1,000,000 7%
Good Lucky Investments  Hong Kong 29 May 2008 HK$1,000,000 100%
Limited
HEREERAT S 200858290 1,000,000 7%
Pacific Energy Limited Hong Kong 22 February 2008 HK$1,000,000 100%

MEAERAT BN 200828228 1,000,000 7T

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Investment holding

RERR

Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong
Kong

REBLEDER

Chinese restaurant
operation
in Hong Kong

REBLEDER

Chinese restaurant
operation
in Hong Kong

REBLEDER

Chinese restaurant
operation
in Hong Kong

REBLEDER

Chinese restaurant
operation
in Hong Kong

REBLEDAER

Chinese restaurant
operation
in Hong Kong

REBLEDAER

Chinese restaurant
operation
in Hong Kong

REBLEDAER




ch 2024 B ZFE2024%F3831HIEFE

31 March
2024
2024%3A31H
Palace Group Management  Hong Kong 16 December 2015 HK$10,000 100% 100%  Provision of
management and

Limited administrative
services to group

companies
EREEERAT BB 20158128168 10,000%7T MERNTRUEER
TERH
Full Prestige Limited Hong Kong 14 June 2019 HK$1 100% 100%  Chinese restaurant
operation in Hong
Kong
BinBERAR ) 201965148 187 REBLEDER
Wui Fung Limited (Note 1) Hong Kong 5 August 2020 HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
SRERAF (M) BB 202068A5H 10,0007 REZER
Guangzhou Duxiaoyue PRC 21 July 2014 RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Chinese restaurant
Catering Management Co., operation in PRC
Ltd.* (Note 1)
ENBENAEHERE  PHE 20145758218 AR RepELERER
BRAR (=) 1,000,0007t
* For identification purpose only
Notes: M eE -
1. The subsidiaries are disposed on 16 September 2024. 1. ZEMBARR2024F9R816HHE-

2. The subsidiary is disposed on 1 April 2024. 2. ZMBABN2024F4B1AHE-
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant
to the resolution passed on 25 January 2019 to give the
eligible persons (as mentioned in the following paragraph)
an opportunity to have a personal stake in our Company and
help motivate them to optimise their future performance
and efficiency to our Group and/or to reward them for
their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with such eligible persons
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will
be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of our
Group, and additionally in the case of Executives (as defined
below), to enable our Group to attract and retain individuals
with experience and ability and/or to reward them for their
past contributions.

Eligible participants of the share option scheme include (a)
any executive director of, manager of, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar
position in any member of our Group, any full-time or
parttime employee, or a person for the time being seconded
to work full-time or part-time for any member of our Group;
(b) a director or proposed director (including an independent
non-executive director) of any member of our Group; (¢) a
direct or indirect shareholder of any member of our Group;
(d) a supplier of goods or services to any member of our
Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint venture
partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any
member of our Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of our Group; (g) an associate of any of the persons
referred to in paragraphs (a) to (c) above; and (h) any person
involved in the business affairs of the Company whom our
board determines to be appropriate to participate in the
share option scheme.

33. fEfcfEstE

ANTBERESTBIRIE2019F1B25HE#H
FIRZZER M EERAER AT G0 FERFT
W) I—RENR A AT EEEAREN# S T AE B
REE N ERERAHEABEAEBNEM R
MER /R EBENE G TIZE UK
SR EAMUEMS N EZEHAEFRIRT
MERRIIMSBEER HESMEFR
FRENRAEBRRE EEIAIINEER
ANT#HFEFESIFREG BEAEERS| &%
BEKRKREINITHRAE BERE T &/
WM EBENE G TR

BRESINGERALTEREQEERETMM
ERFNEAATES KEHEETEE
B -BEENEMBUNEMES - ERE2RK
FREEENEAECERTAREATRES
BEFRETEIAL O)FEBERNMEAT
NEFNEEES (BEBIFEATES) ;0
FEBEAMERATNERIEIZRE ()
EEREAMRELARNERIBRBHERD ()&
EBEMREATNER B -EZHFHSE
B -mMBEE AGEH REBEARKE (HDBE
EBEMREARRMERE K FENH
>z mBAE MR B0 BEIHMBRSTH
ALTHER ;(9) EX@ZE(OBRMAEMALR
BMBA, RhWEFEEERESSARBRES
B B2HEARTEBNERDAL-
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable under the share
options to each eligible persons in the Schemes within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, or to
any of their associate, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the securities at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

No share options have been granted since the adoption of
the share option scheme and there are no share options
outstanding as at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 March 2023

(i)  In November 2022, Sea Nice Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group, was disposed to an independent third party at a
cash consideration of HK$1.

33.

34,

BIRHEE @

REMERSREIARSAENSEERA
ITREBREMA FETRONDERSHEBRN
FARERABDEHEITRMONI% FE—TEK
BRI REERERE  BEANKRRAE L
RERRERALE ©

RIAABDEF FTBITHRAESRTEREN
FRRSENBMBEANBRERCE L IFNITE
FEERME IS RER12E B BER T A
AR EERFRIBIIFRTESTRNEDRFN
BMEBEANCTABERE SBEEAREELQF
BEITRMN01%NEEE (EREEABEE
F R E 5t H) #8785,000,00058 70 > HE KL
RIREAE LEIRRALE

BEIRM BB REST8I LUZR I B H R E - R
2024 K;2023F38318 » HEBERERETT
fiEo

HEMBATE
B E2023F3A31MHIEEE

() AEER2022E11BLEBETHNRSARE
HEHT BB ARBRERATF
—BIUE =T

HK$'000
TAET

Cash inflow arising on disposal and cash
consideration received

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was

HEEENRERAKREWRFEEZNAE

BREEHRNEERGED !

lost:
HK$'000
FABT
Right-of-use assets FRAREE 9,660
Bank and cash balances IR1TRIRB LR 124
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EHMEWRIE 124
Trade and other payables B REMEMRIE (2,008)
Lease liabilities HEasd (20,592)
Provision for reinstatement costs B R A (396)
Net liabilities disposed of FRHEBE R4 (13,088)
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“ontinued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)
(i)  (Continued)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:

#=202343A31H
0 &)

= ()

i E — R BB A B s

Cash consideration BHE2RE =%
Net liabilities disposed of FrH&E & EFEE 13,088
Gain on disposal HE W 13,088

i Less than HK$1,000

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 17 September 2020, Eternal Grand Developments
Limited (the “Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and the Vendors entered into the acquisition
agreement (the “Acquisition”), pursuant to which the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire and the
Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
shares of Wui Fung Limited (“Wui Fung”) for a consideration
of HK$13,000,000. The Acquisition was completed on
29 July 2022. The acquisition has been accounted for as
acquisition of business using the acquisition method.

Wui Fung is a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Zk/&
BREFKREEMNEE AR AT Guangzhou Duxiaoyue
Catering Management Co., Ltd. (BMNHE/NBE& EEE
FR‘AB)) and Guangzhou Duxiaoyue Catering Management
Co., Ltd. Shenzhen Airport Branch (BEMWHE/NBEHE
EERRXBFRYBEIEDIE) (collectively, the “Duxiaoyue
Catering”), which are principally engaged in dining service,
are indirectly wholly-owned by Wui Fung.

Consideration transferred

* D721,000%E 7T

35. BB AT

R2020F98 170 AR B2 ENBRBEIRE
BERABRAR (TBA)) BEASTWERE

(TWBEHE) BEEAREEHRGWE M
ELHREEKRGELESERERAD (&) >
2B 1T, » 18 7%13,000,00078 7 ° U &
FIEDM2022F78298 =M - WEESEEEH
AW A EAER W EITE ST EIER

BES—BREBEMMILZAE - HKEHRS
FHREEREEARAT BEMNHENEER
EEARABDREMNTENEEREERRA
BRI S D IE EEIE/NARER > WERAE
FTENFENRT) HEEHREEHRR-

EWRtE

Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries

Note: Acquisition related costs amounting to approximately
HK$8,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in
the current year, within the "Other expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

WK B AR ZENEE 13,000

W EE o U AE R B A 498,000 7 Mt St A B AR AX
B rEERGRERERAMEERERA
TEMAZ BEE T HEAEFERZ




arch 2024 B FE 20245383185 ILEE

Right-of-use assets EREEE 772
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRRIE 599
Bank balances and cash IRITHEFRIRE 66
Lease liabilities HEAaE (772)
Trade and other payables B 5% Kk EH M RIE (2,226)
Net identifiable liabilities acquired FrU BBV Bl 38 Bl & B F 58 (1,561)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEELEZEE

Consideration transferred BEEAE 13,000
Less: net liabilities =R b 1,561
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEZHE 14,561
Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Wui Fung because the WEGREEHERHNINEEEEIE TR
acquisition included the synergies which enhance and realise RERAEEREARFEARENEERE
the expansion of restaurant business of the Group in Hong BEBHB R BEIMRE -

Kong and the People’s Republic of China.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected FEHZEWESEEES 2 EER T AR NER
to be deductible for tax purposes. Igo

Net cash inflow on acquisition of Wui Fung KB gIE ZRERABEE

Consideration paid during the year FERNEMHAE =

Add: cash and cash equivalents balances acquired 1 : FrEBIR S RIRES EBY LS i 66
66

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group WEEERAEREEZTE

Included in the loss for the year is approximately HK$404,000 AFEEBEEFATEEIETREHRIEBEY

attributable to the additional business generated by 404,000787T c A FE WA BIER B G LIS

Wui Fung. Revenue for the year includes approximately #92,220,00078 75 ©

HK$2,220,000 generated from Wui Fung.



35.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A e I S R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
(Continued)

Had the acquisition of Wui Fung been completed on 1 April
2022, revenue for the year of the Group from continuing
operations would have been approximately HK$2,785,000,
and loss for the year from continuing operations would
have been approximately HK$1,450,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2022, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

35. EEMIB AT @)

WESERAEEMERZZE (@)

W —EBR2022F481HEMR > &
EEAFERBFESEEFT ZRAROR
2,785,000 MAFERBEFBEEEER
2 518 &40 731,450,000 70 o B E B EME MR
AR R A R A BB SR 202245
ARBERBTERBRENERN I IRAK
MERERT TAREARREERRZA
Ao

36. ARE)MFFRARE

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET

Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBRBZEE 4,901 5,258

Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS I 8 A B =R 18 1,724 1,724
Prepayments TEAT 1A = 737
Bank balances RIT4HERR 19 46
1,743 2,507
Current liabilities mENBaE

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT I B A B =R I8 7,129 6,004
Accruals and other payables FESTE A R H AT FIE 24,082 8,123
31,211 14,127
Net current liabilities mENBEREE (29,468) (11,620)
Net liabilities =P (24,567) (6,362)

Capital and reserves BRK#E
Share capital %N 11,500 11,500
Reserves (Note) & (51 (36,067) (17,862)
(24,567) (6,362)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e W s R I

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Movements in the reserves during the years are as follow:

36. AATIMIHERAR @

BT : IMERBIREFEZEIMT

Share Other  Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total
e i E Hitnfk s | 4zt
(Note)
(Ff=2)
At 1 April 2022 12022548 1H 135,967 4,967 (136,085) 4,849
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEREERZESE
expense for the year - - (22,711) (22,711)
At 31 March 2023 and R2023F38318 K
1 April 2023 2023FE481H 135,967 4,967 (158,796) (17,862)
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZERZ AR
expense for the year - - (18,205) (18,205)
At 31 March 2024 12024435318 135,967 4,967 (177,001) (36,067)

Note: Other reserves represented (i) the difference between
the aggregate amount of issued and fully paid share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the nominal
amount of the shares issued by the Company in exchange
for the entire equity interests in the subsidiaries as part
of the group reorganisation and (ii) deemed contribution
arising from the listing expenses borne by the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

37. LITIGATIONS

The Company received a petition dated 27 October 2023
(the "Petition”) from Mr. Wang Lin under the Companies
(Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Chapter 32, Laws of Hong Kong) (“CWUMPQ"), filed in
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “High Court”) under Companies Winding-
up Proceedings No. 478 of 2023. The Petition claimed that
the Company may be wound up by the High Court on the
grounds that it is unable to pay its debts.

The Petition was filed against the Company for allegedly
failing to repay its overdue bond under a bond certificate
purportedly issued by the Company in the principal amount
of HK$5,150,000 and accrued interest of approximately
HK$77,000. This amount was allegedly due for payment on
17 August 2023 and owed by the Company to Mr. Wang Lin
("Claim 1").
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37.

sk - HREBEOE QR RERBATNE
BT MERERFTBERARATDBRBNER
BEikE (FRERBMEN—D) METH
RITEEZBRER; Ri)H EHRAXEEL
AR BIERRRAEGIELHE -

EEN
RABIWEIREMEERIB(RT (BB RME
&) 1&6)) EBEFIFE325) (TEEIEHF) 7
EAFTHESE AR (EEER) #XH
2023FENE)BHRIEFE4785RIE N HEFA2023
F10827HNER (T285)) - E2HFER AL
BAERENEBEEEME S ABU5%E

EFNLHTHARFTRE IEEERERERE
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5,150,000/ 7t & FE 5+ H] B4 477,000 70 8941
BRE S o XA IBIRTBIE N 2023FE8 B 17H 1
TSHAAB RS EMIAE (TBE1)) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024E3H31HILEE

37. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

In April 2024, the Company received a legal letter from Mr.
Law Yuen Him, claiming that the Company failed to repay
its overdue bond under a bond certificate issued by the
Company in the principal amount of HK$5,205,000 and
accrued interest of approximately HK$469,000 and filed to
Court as a supporting creditor of the case. This amount was
allegedly due for payment on 30 November 2023 and owed
by the Company to Mr. Law Yuen Him (“Claim 2").

In June 2024, the Company received a legal letter from
Mrs. Zhao Li, claiming that the Company failed to repay
its overdue bond under a bond certificate issued by the
Company in the principal amount of HK$2,360,000 and
accrued interest of approximately HK$31,000 and filed to
Court as a supporting creditor of the case. This amount was
allegedly due for payment on 27 August 2023 and owed by
the Company to Mrs. Zhao Li (“Claim 3").

Claims 1 to 3 are collectively referred to as the “Bonds”.

In June 2024, the Company received a legal letter from JAN
Financial Press Limited and Ogier and filed to Court as a
supporting creditor of the case, claiming that the Company
failed to settle their professional fee billed of HK$280,000
and USD 4,142 respectively.

In order to dismiss the winding-up petition, a settlement
has been reached between the Company and the
petitioner regarding the Petition, totaling approximately
HK$13,804,000 (the "Settlement”), which was accounted
as litigation loss in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
March 2024. Following the Settlement, a consent summons
for the dismissal of the Petition was executed and filed with
the High Court of Hong Kong on 10 July 2024. The High
Court of Hong Kong ordered the Petition to be dismissed on
22 July 2024.

Despite that the settlement was made to the counterparties,
the Existing Directors are uncertain about the existence of
the Bonds. The Company is seeking legal advice and taking
procedures to confirm the validity of the Bonds. For more
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 8
August 2024.

37.

aFER @

R20245F48 > AN/~ B UK Bl 48 12 5k oo 4 BU 2 BT
K BRARNBRERBARRBEITHNESE
Z(EEBHEHASEEAS,205,0008 T & EH BA
#469,00078 A HAE S > MEA RGN RF
BN B APTIR R A o 2 B IR B ERL 2023
F1MHA 0B ThHARB R B IRFR T E
(TEpZR2 ) ©

122024568 » A B U EI RS BB 22 L B9 FEREMER >
BRBANBRERBEAABETHESEEZE
BHASLEEA2,360,0008 T RESFELNA
31,0008 TV BIERES > WIFAREFNLFE
FENEEPTIR AR EE o A BB B FEFR 20234
8H27TASMT HEAABRTHEEL T (THE
3)) e

BRIEIRERMEST -

12024F6 8 » &R ABUXEIAN Financial Press
Limited &2 OgierfI £ EMER > W AF A RGN ZFE
BARERERPRE BRAABDRESZNHE
HAZENEEER > 9 5/%4280,0008 7T &
4,1423=7T °

AROBEEEH AABHEFAREHE
R AN AR > 48B4 7513,804,00058 7T (TFIfR)) »
ZEENEE2024FE3831HIEEENGSE
mREMEEWRERPIEAIFRIBER M
R BEHEFNERERN202457810H
BENWAEESSELRRR -BESZEERN
2024F7H22H T BBIEE

EBEERRZHFETHEE BREESL A
BEESEEEE - ARBEESKEIEZER
TR EFUERESHNER M - BAESEH
1 B2RANRAEIHEEA2024F888HM A
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Annual Report 2024 FE%§ 185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e W s R I

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HIEFEE

38.

39.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in elsewhere to the consolidated financial
statements, the events after reporting period entered by the
Group are as follows:

Disposal of Eternal Grand Group

On 16 September 2024, Eternal Grand Developments Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Eternal
Grand Group”), subsidiaries of the Group, were disposed
to an independent third party at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$8.

Disposal of Global Gourmet Group

On 28 August 2024, Global Gourmet Catering Services
Management Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Global Gourmet Group”), subsidiaries of the
Group, were disposed to an independent third party at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$8.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 8 July 2022, the Company has entered into a Business
Development Consultancy Agreement (the “Consultancy
Agreement”) with Jasons Holdings (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (R B CRII) BRAE]) (“Jasons”), pursuant
to which Jasons will be remunerated in the manner to be
agreed between the Company and Jasons.

On 14 July 2023, in relation to the remuneration for the
Consultancy Agreement, the Company entered into a
remuneration agreement with Jasons (the “Remuneration
Agreement”), pursuant to which the consultancy fee (i.e.
HK$9,400,000) (the “Consultancy Fee"”) to Jasons shall be
settled by way of allotment and issue of 45,000,000 shares
("Consideration Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.227
for each Consideration Share. The application to issue the
Consideration Share had subsequently be withdrawn by the
Company on 17 November 2023.
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39.

HEHREE
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HEREZEE

R2024F9816H  ZEBNH B QR R &
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HEFT—RBIFE=H  BE{BAASHE T

HERKEREM
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Gourmet Catering Services Management Limited
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HAREE
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) wind up :
ompany, the winding up hearing of which shall take place
on 16 April 2025. The Company has engaged legal counsel
for legal advice.

As per the opinion from the Company’'s lawyer, given the
factual dispute as to the authenticity of the Remuneration
Agreement and the services provided by Jasons, it is unlikely
for Jasons to be able to wind up the Company without first
clarifying the factual issues. Therefore, the management of
the Company considered that the Consultancy Fee should not
be recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2024 at this stage.

R ETLIENS2025F4H 16 H &
A REM L ERAREE -

BEARTRANER BN HFNIRZENE
BEURAREMEHBRBNEEFESE &
TEELAEFEERENBERLT ARBFX
BREHARBETER Rt AT EEE
BRABEBERENEE2024F3831HLEFE
BRSSP RESD




Financial Summary

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024F3831HILEE
RESULTS

Revenue e

Profit/(loss) before tax MAETRF, (E518)

Income tax expenses FriStR RSz

Attributable to: FE1G -

Owner of the Company FiN/NEIEZFS DN

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Equity

Equity attributable to
shareholders to the
Company

BaE

AR

#m

KRB RREIG T

Year ended 31 March
HE38310LEE

2023 2022 2021 2020

20234 20224 20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET FBT FBET

421,309 304,356 294,120 224,081 650,801
29,145 (6,940) (31,933)  (123,953)  (106,338)
(300) = (80) (316) (6,033)
28,845 (6,940) (32,013)  (124,269)  (112,371)
28,845 (6,940) (32,013)  (124,269)  (112,371)

BEEREE
As at 31 March
¥3831H

2023 2022 2021 2020

20234 20224 20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHIT FAETT FHBT FEBT

183,673 255,798 336,595 536,010 765,894
(142,830)  (243,931)  (317,828)  (485,230)  (627,595)
40,843 11,867 18,767 50,780 138,299

40,843 11,867 18,767 50,780 138,299

The consolidated financial results of the Group for the years ended
31 March 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 are set out in the
Company’s annual report of the respective year.

The summary above does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.
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